
MEETING OF HARLOW COUNCIL 
 

7.30pm on Thursday, 12 September, 2013 
 

In the Council Chamber - Civic Centre 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any items on the 

agenda. 
 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2013. 

 
 

4. Communications from the Chairman  
  
 
5. Petitions from the Public   
 
 
6. Questions from the Public   
 
 
7. Questions from Councillors  
  
 
8. Motions from Councillors   
 
 a) Blacklisting   

 
 Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner and seconded by Councillor 

Rod Truan: 
 

“The Council resolves to seek assurances from its suppliers and 
 

Public Document Pack



  any holding or parent companies that they: 
 

• Have in place, execute and monitor appropriate policies and 
procedures to ensure that current and potential employees’ 
or agency workers’ legitimate concerns are treated 
seriously, acted upon, and are not subject to discrimination 
or reprisals as a consequence of voicing concerns with 
regard to health and safety, employment law, legality or 
making any other disclosure in the public interest 
(‘Whistleblowing’), either now or in the past. 

 

• Do not discriminate, in terms of recruitment, retention, 
remuneration or advancement on the grounds of current or 
previous Trade Union membership. 
 

• Have in place, execute and monitor recruitment policies and 
procedures to ensure that potential employees and/or 
agency workers are not discriminated against on the 
grounds of current or past Trade Union membership or 
activity, or any current or previous whistleblowing. 
 

• Do not now, nor will at any point in the future, subscribe to, 
contribute to, utilise or act upon any repository of 
employment information that does not fully conform to the 
Data Protection Principles of the Information Commissioners 
Office. 
 

The Council further resolves that in the event of any organisation 
not being able to provide such assurances, or evidence coming to 
light that those assurances have been breached, the Council will 
ensure, as far as it is able to do so under law, that no such 
organisations are on our approved suppliers list for all future work 
and that these are enshrined in the Council’s procurement and 
commissioning policy.  This will include ensuring that all future 
contracts will include terms such that breaching such assurances 
would be grounds for termination of contract.” 
 

 b) Fairtrade Status   
 

 Proposed by Councillor Edna Stevens and seconded by Councillor 
Maggie Hulcoop: 

 
“This Council wishes to renew its status as a Fairtrade Town, 
which it was first designated in 2004. 

 
The Council wishes to continue to be recognised by residents, the 
business community of Harlow, District Council suppliers, Harlow 
District Council employees and other local authorities, as a Council 

 



  that actively supports and promotes the concept of Fairtrade, thus 
ensuring that producers from developing countries get a fair price 
for their goods and labour.   
 
Accordingly this Council resolves to: 
 
(i) investigate the Council’s own purchasing policies and 

purchase Fairtrade products in particular, to stock Fairtrade 
tea and coffee for use at our meetings and in the 
Chairman’s Room, where possible;  

 
(ii) promote Fairtrade issues and practices amongst local 

businesses, commercial and other orgnisations; 
 
(iii) continue to encourage the Harlow Fairtrade Action Group in 

their development of a strategy to keep Harlow as a 
‘Fairtrade Town’.” 

 
 

9. References from Cabinet and Committees   
 
 a) Licensing Committee 3 September 2013 - Licensing Act Policy  

(Pages 11 - 57) 
 

  The above Committee recommended to Council that  
 
(i) the final draft of the Licensing Act Policy be adopted; 
 
(ii) authority be delegated to the Head of Community Wellbeing,  

to make minor and consequential changes to the Policy. 
 

 b) Licensing Committee 3 September 2013 - Scrap Metal Dealers Act 
2013 Implementation of the Act and Scheme of Delegation   
(Pages 58 - 62) 

 
 The above Committee recommended to Council that: 

 
(i) the commencement of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

and its implementation be noted; 
 

(ii) powers be delegated from the Act to permit Officers to 
perform the administrative functions of the Act; 

 
(iii) powers be delegated from the Act to permit Licensing  

Sub-Committees to be held; 
 

   (iv) powers be delegated from the Act to permit Officers to 
undertake enforcement of the Act. 

 
 



10. Reports from Officers   
 
 
11. Minutes of Cabinet and Committee Meetings  (Pages 63 - 76) 
 
 To note the following Cabinet and Committee minutes: 

 
Cabinet/Committee Date 
  
Scrutiny 16/7/13 

 
Cabinet 18/7/13 
  
Development Management 14/8/13 
 
 

12. Matters of Urgent Business   
 



 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD ON 

 

25 July 2013 7.30pm  - 9.05 pm 
 

PRESENT 

 

COUNCILLORS 

 
OFFICERS 

Linda Pailing (Chair) 
Ian Beckett (Vice-Chair) 

 

 
 
 
Malcolm Morley, Chief Executive 
Brian Keane, Interim Head of 
Governance 
Jo Maskell, Corporate and 
Democratic Services Officer 
 

David Carter 
Simon Carter 
Nick Churchill 
Jean Clark 
Jon Clempner 
Mike Danvers 
Tony Durcan 
Waida Forman 
Michael Garnett 
Tony Hall 
Maggie Hulcoop 
Andrew Johnson 
 

Joshua Jolles 
Muriel Jolles 
Sue Livings 
Christine O'Dell 
Russell Perrin 
Daniella Pritchard 
Paul Schroder 
Edna Stevens 
Paul Sztumpf 
Emma Toal 
Mark Wilkinson 
 

APOLOGIES 

 

 

Jacqui Cross 
Manny Doku 
Eddie Johnson 
Patrick McCabe 
 

Guy Mitchinson 
Dennis Palmer 
Rod Truan 
Phil Waite 
 

 
15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

16. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Annual Council meeting held on  
25 May 2013 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

 
 

17. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIRMAN  

 
(a) Royal Birth 
 

The Chairman reported that, on behalf of the Council, she would be 
writing to their Royal Highnesses the Duke and Duchess of 

Agenda Item 3

1



Cambridge extending best wishes and congratulations on the birth 
of their son, HRH Prince George of Cambridge. 
 

(b) Ex-Councillor John Cave 
 

Tribute was paid to the late John Cave who had served the town 
admirably as a Councillor from 1972-2003.  
 

(c) Chairman’s Twitter Account 
 

The Chairman stated that she would be using her twitter account to 
relay information about her Chair’s activities, rather than updating 
everyone at Council meetings. 
 

(d) Youth Council 
 

The Chairman reported that she would be visiting the Youth Council 
at their next meeting with a view to reciprocal arrangements at 
Council meetings.  
 

(e) Chairman’s Charities – Fund Raising 
 

The Chairman outlined various fund-raising events she would be 
holding during her year in office. 

 
 

18. PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
None received. 
 
 

19. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
As the questioner for Questions 3 and 4 on the tabled list was not present 
at the meeting when they were called, they were deleted from the list of 
questions to be asked. 
 
The remaining questions and answers which were put, are appended to 
these minutes at Appendix 1. 
 
 

20. QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 
Attached at Appendix 2 to these minutes. 
 
 

21. MOTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 
None received. 
 

2



22. MAIN DEBATE  

 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 17.3, the Council debated the 
work undertaken by the Council in the previous municipal year, together 
with highlights, pressures and potential issues for the coming year.  
 
It had been a challenging year as national austerity measures had had an 
impact on the resources available to the Council.  Notwithstanding this, the 
Council looked forward to meeting these challenges to provide services to 
the town to the benefit of its residents. 
 
 

23. REFERENCES FROM CABINET AND COMMITTEES  

 
(a) Cabinet 

20 June 2013 
 

(i) Enterprise Zone –LDO – London Road South –Final 
Adoption 

 
  RESOLVED that 
 

(A) the London Road South Local Development Order 
(LDO) is adopted; 

 
(B) the Head of Regeneration is delegated authority to 

make any necessary minor amendments to the Local 
Development Order and Statement of Reasons prior 
to adoption, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Environment. 

 
(ii) Enterprise Zone – LDO – London Road North – Final 

Adoption 
 

Whilst Council supported the provision of the Enterprise 
Zone, it was concerned that the sudden and unexpected 
closure of the Maypole Sports and Social Club (which sat on 
land earmarked for the new highway infrastructure) should 
not mean the closure of a footpath traversing this site.  

 
It was noted that the Portfolio Holder for Environment would 
raise the retention of the footpath with the landowners. 

 
  RESOLVED that 
 

(A) the London Road North Local Development 
Order (LDO) is adopted; 

 
(B) the Head of Regeneration is delegated 

authority to make any necessary minor 

3



amendments to the Local Development Order, 
Design Code and Statement of Reasons prior 
to adoption, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Environment. 

 
 

24. REPORTS FROM OFFICERS  

 
(a) Council Representation on Essex Police and Crime Panel 
 

Proposed by Councillor Paul Sztumpf and seconded by Councillor 
Maggie Hulcoop it was: 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor Mike Danvers is appointed as 
the Council’s substitute representative on the Essex Police 
and Crime Panel. 

 
 

25. MINUTES OF CABINET AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 
 RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted: 
 
 Scrutiny     12/3/13 
 
 Cabinet     14/3/13 
       20/6/13 
 
 Audit & Standards    20/3/13 
       26/6/13 
 
 Development Management  17/4/13 

Special Development Management 22/5/13 
Development Management  12/6/13 
      10/7/13 
 
Licensing     9/7/13 

 
 

26. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 
 
 

 
 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL 

4



 APPENDIX 1 

 

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 

 
1. Mrs Jane Steer, 69 Orchard Croft to the Leader of the Council:  

 

When you made your first speech as Leader of the Council you said that 
you and your Group were committed to consulting with residents on 
issues that affect this town. 
 
With this in mind, how many residents were actively involved in deciding 
the projects that are listed in the Environmental Ward Improvement 
Programme? 

 

Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 

 The consultation on the Ward Environmental Projects was undertaken by 
Ward Councillors, through discussions with Residents Associations and 
other community groups.  While it is not known exactly how many 
residents took part in these consultations, the Ward Councillors put 
forward over one hundred suggestions for projects, so it can be assumed 
that there was considerable community involvement in the process. 

 
 

2. Mrs Jane Steer, 69 Orchard Croft to the Leader of the Council: 

 

Can you explain please where the funding for the Environmental Ward 
Improvement projects is coming from.  Is it from the General Fund 
reserve or the Housing Revenue Account or (if it is split) how the split is 
divided? 
 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
There are 3 sources of funding for the projects; 
 
Firstly, as part of the budget reports for the 2012/13 financial year 
presented to Council in February 2012, the General Fund made a 
£55,000 provision to fund these projects. 
 
Secondly, as part of the same report and budget process, Kier Harlow 
agreed to match fund the General Fund contribution of £55,000 giving a 
joint funding contribution of £110,000 to the projects. 
 
Thirdly, as a result of decisions taken by the Special Cabinet meeting on  
8 March 2012, a further £110,000 was to be provided to the projects from 
the savings achieved from the renegotiation and extension of the Kier 
Harlow Ltd contract. The majority of savings achieved fall to the Housing 
Revenue Account and therefore this additional investment has been 
funded from that source. 

5



 
 

3. Mr H Hoad, 114 Greenhills to the Leader of the Council: 

 

Are you aware and happy that a complaint by the tenants on the finance 
panel had to wait two months to receive a response on a dispute? 
 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 

  
A complaint from the Finance Panel was received by the Chief Executive 
and due to the serious nature of the complaint an Evaluating Manger was 
appointed to fully investigate it.  This investigation involved a meeting 
with the Finance Panel, interviews with Officers and Councillors and 
analysis of a significant amount of documentation.  Such thorough 
investigation of a serious complaint will inevitably take time and I am 
satisfied that it was carried out in a rigorous and timely manner, and I am 
also pleased that the complaint was not upheld. 
 
 

4. Mr H Hoad, 114 Greenhills to the Leader of the Council: 

 
Are you happy that the Council is publishing documentation that is full of 
errors and incorrect information? 
 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
The Council takes care to ensure that it publishes accurate 
documentation.   
 
However, I am unable to comment further without knowing which 
document is being referred to. 
 

 
 

6



APPENDIX 2 
 

QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
1. Councillor Joshua Jolles to the Leader of the Council:       
 

Who authorised the funding of many of the Ward Environmental 
Improvement projects from the Housing Revenue Account instead of 
being more properly funded from the General Fund? 

 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council:  

 
The decision to allocate additional funding to the Ward Initiatives budget 
was taken by a special meeting of the Cabinet held on 8 March 2012. 

 
The then chairman of the Joint Select Committee Working Party on the 
Kier Harlow Contract proposed an additional recommendation from the 
Working Party to the report being considered by the Cabinet at that 
meeting.  The additional recommendation committed the Council to 
allocating the funding to the Ward improvements and that the funding 
would be met from the savings arising as a result of the contract 
extension and renegotiation which by their nature could only be achieved 
from the HRA.  The Portfolio Holder for Resources at that time made no 
objection to the recommendation. 

 
The General Fund and the Councils JVCo with Kier have also 
contributed to the costs of the initiatives which it is anticipated will benefit 
the whole town including those areas of Council-owned housing stock. 

 
 A programme of work is being finalised with expenditure anticipated 

during 2013/14. 
 
 

2. Councillor Joshua Jolles to the Leader of the Council: 
  

Why are we proposing to plant trees at least a year too late to 
commemorate the 2012 Olympics when it would seem more appropriate 
to celebrate an historic British victory at Wimbledon by restoring the use 
of our municipal tennis courts which have fallen into decay in various 
parts of the town and making them more universally available, especially 
to children? 

 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 

 
When the Olympic flame came through Harlow, tens of thousands of 
people lined the streets to celebrate, and over seventy volunteers from 
our communities arrived at 6am to help prepare for the event.  The 
community response to this event was such that it seems appropriate to 
celebrate it by planting trees in each Ward in colours that represent the 
five rings on the Olympic flag, or which originate from the five continents.  

7



The planting of trees in almost any circumstances helps to improve the 
local environment, but this particular initiative will also celebrate 
community involvement in an event of national significance. 

 
The cost of regenerating the tennis courts would be more than the 
funding available in the Ward Environmental Improvement Budgets.  
There is a budget in the Non-Housing Capital Programme for 
improvement works to tennis courts and Officers are currently prioritising 
a work programme in relation to this.  However, there is not sufficient 
funding to regenerate all of the courts and therefore those requiring work 
on health and safety grounds will need to be prioritised. 

 
 

3.  Councillor Andrew Johnson to the Leader of the Council: 
 

Does the Leader of the Council agree with Councillor Jean Clark that the 
Cabinet system is undemocratic and that there is a disproportionate 
amount of power concentrated in the hands of the few? (Harlow Star 
November 2010)? 
 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
In any political Group there will always be a range of views.  I am proud 
that my Group is no different.  It is always important as Leader to hear all 
of their Group members’ views. 
 
 

4.  Councillor Andrew Johnson to the Leader of the Council: 
 

Does the Leader of the Council still hold Labour’s stated view that the 
Cabinet system means Opposition Members becoming disenfranchised 
with the decision-making process (Harlow Star May 2010)? 
 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
There are advantages and disadvantages in any democratic system 
which a local authority chooses for its decision-making system.  I believe 
that our Administration has worked well in its first year as a Cabinet, but 
we will always look to ways to improve. 
 
 

5.  Councillor Simon Carter to the Leader of the Council: 
 
Would the Leader of the Council join me in welcoming the Coalition 
Government’s pledge to support Councils who wish to freeze their 
Council Tax with further financial support over the next two years? 

 
 
 
 

8



Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
As set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy reported to Cabinet in 
January 2013 and Council in February 2013, the Council Tax Freeze 
Grant is a short term funding arrangement which does not assist local 
government in formulating and supporting sound medium term planning. 
For the reasons set out in the earlier reports, the Council will not currently 
be supporting or welcoming the proposals from the Coalition Government 
on this issue. 
 
I would point out that this is not at odds with the previous Administration’s 
stance on this issue, as set out in reports to the Council’s meeting of  
9 February 2012. 
 
 

6.  Councillor Simon Carter to the Leader of the Council: 
 

How many homes could have been built in Harlow by a registered social 
landlord for the cost of the four houses going up on the site of the former 
social club? 

   
  Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 

The four houses that are proposed for the former social club site are 
being provided by a registered social landlord (now known as a 
registered provider).  The valuation of that site has been independently 
assessed therefore it can be assumed that other registered providers 
should also be able to provide four affordable homes of a similar size and 
tenure on that site.   

 
 
7.  Councillor Tony Hall to the Leader of the Council: 
 

Does the Leader of the Council stand by Labour’s pledge to revert to 
black sack rubbish collections? 

 
Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 
The Council is contractually committed to the current domestic waste 
collection system, an integral part of which are the containers now in use 
and the vehicles designed to handle them.  The Council is not in a 
position to bear the costs of writing off these capital assets part-way 
through a contract. 
 
 

8.  Councillor Tony Hall to the Leader of the Council: 
 

What does the Leader of the Council think of Ecco’s management of the 
Nature Reserve? 

 

9



Reply from Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader of the Council: 
 

Ecco has now been managing the Nature Reserve for over a year and the 
arrangement has worked very well.  Ecco has made a number of 
improvements to the physical environment at the Conservation Centre, 
there is a varied programme of activities and visitor numbers are good.  
The Council monitors the arrangement using a Balanced Score Card 
performance management system and at the end of the first year, 
performance was good across all areas. 
 

 
9. Councillor Russell Perrin to the Portfolio Holder Regeneration: 
 
 Can the Portfolio Holder please explain why he feels it is necessary to 

continue with the decision to abolish the free hour for parking in the town’s 
car parks and charge hard pressed residents to use their local shops and 
amenities and to punish local businesses in order to prop up funding of 
other Council services, given the fact that there is a predicted underspend 
on the General Fund? 

 
 Reply from Councillor Paul Schroder, Portfolio Holder Regeneration: 
 

In discussion with my Cabinet colleagues, we have decided, at present, 
that the abolition of the free hour would not be conducive to the best 
interests of local residents and businesses in Harlow. I have therefore 
asked Officers to retain the free parking hour and, in parallel, introduce a 
without obligation, voluntary optional payment of 20p, the receipts of which 
could be used to support deserving or needy causes in Harlow. 

 
 

 
 

10



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 3 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

TITLE: LICENSING ACT POLICY 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

MICHAEL PITT, ENVIRONMENT AND 
LICENSING OFFICER (01279) 446114 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:  PAULINE WRIGHT (01279) 446148 
 
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A Licensing Committee recommend the final draft of the Licensing Act Policy to 

Full Council for adoption 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Licensing Act 2003 requires local authorities to have a statement of 

licensing policy. This policy is required to be reviewed initially at a maximum 
interval of every 3 years but after this current review, the interval will be a 
maximum of every 5 years. 
 

2. The current policy is based on the Essex Model Policy developed jointly by 
the Essex Licensing Authorities with Essex Police and Essex County Fire and 
Rescue Service. 
 

3. The Licensing Act 2003 has been amended by The Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 and Live Music Act 2012 so these changes have 
been reflected in the draft policy. 
 

4. Members of the Licensing Committee have seen the proposed draft of this 
policy at the Licensing Committee meeting on 6 March 2013.  It was agreed 
at this time that the draft policy be circulated for consultation.  
 

5. The draft policy was sent for consultation following this Committee meeting. 
On 9 May 2013 a notice was placed in The Star Newspaper; all licence 
holders were written to as were all responsible authorities to advise them 
about the consultation; the draft was also posted on the Harlow Council 
website. 
 
The consultation process was for 12 weeks.  
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9a

11



ISSUES/PROPOSALS 

6. The consultation process resulted in only one response, this being from 
Essex Police who raise no comments. A copy of this response is Appendix 1.  
 

7. The draft policy, once endorsed by the Licensing Committee will need to go 
before Full Council in order that it can be published before the deadline of 
7 January 2014. The final draft version of the policy is Appendix 2. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

None specific to this report. 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
There are no specific financial implications arising from this policy. 

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  
 
Housing 

None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

Contained within the report. 

Author: Lynn Seward, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
 Implementation of this policy will satisfy the Local Authority’s statutory obligations 
required under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Author: Dimple Roopchand on behalf of Brian Keane, Interim Head of 
Governance 
 
 
Background Papers 
None. 
 
 
 

12



APPENDIX 1

13



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2) 
  

 
 

 

 

Harlow Council 
Statement of 

Licensing Policy 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Made under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 
2003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you require further information please contact the Licensing Team, Civic Centre, The 

Water Gardens, Harlow, Essex, CM20 1WG. 
Email: licensing@harlow.gov.uk  Telephone: (01279) 446005/446357/446320 

14



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2) 
  

Contents 

 
 
 
Introduction          1 
 
  The Licensing Objectives      1 
 
  Statement of Licensing Policy     2 
 
  Consultation        2 
 
  Links to other Strategies      2 
 
  Applications        3 
 
  Representations       4 
 
  Conditions        5 
 
  Delegation of Functions      6 
 
  The Need for Licensed Premises     6 
 
  Cumulative Impact       6 
 
  Late Night Levy       7 
 
  Early Morning Restriction Order     7 
 
  Advice and Guidance      8 
 
  Reviews        8 
 
  Enforcement        8 
 
 
Licensing Objectives        9 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder      11 
 
Public Safety         13 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance       14 
 
Protection of Children from Harm      15 
 
List of Appendices 
 
A. Delegation of Powers 
B. Relevant Authorities:  Contact Details 

15



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2) 
  

C. Useful Addresses 
D. References to Best Practice Guides 
E. The Application Process 
F. Objections/Representations/Reviews and Appeals 

16



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 1 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL LICENSING POLICY       

     

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
Introduction 
 
1.1 Harlow Council is the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and is 

responsible for granting premises licences, club premises certificates, 
temporary events notices and personal licences in the District of Harlow in 
respect of the sale and/or supply of alcohol and the provision of regulated 
entertainment and late night refreshment.  Since it initially came into effect, 
the Licensing Act 2003 has been subject to a number of amendments.  All 
references to the Licensing Act 2003 contained within this policy relate to the 
Licensing Act 2003 (as amended). 

 

1.2 When assessing applications, the Council must be satisfied that the measures 
proposed in the applicant’s operating schedule aim to achieve the four 
licensing objectives. Bold type refers to matters that the Council expects to 
see addressed in the applicant’s operating schedule, where appropriate. 
Passages of text that are not in bold are provided to assist applicants to 
understand what the Council is seeking to achieve, the factors that influence 
the achievement of the licensing objectives and the control measures that 
could be implemented by the applicant to achieve that outcome.  

 
1.3 This policy covers a wide variety of premises and activities carried on in them 

including theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, private members’ 
clubs, educational establishments and community centres, as well as shops 
and off-licences and late night food premises and vehicles selling hot food or 
hot drink after 11p.m. For this reason, this policy cannot detail all the factors 
that influence the achievement of the licensing objectives nor can this policy 
detail all the control measures that may be appropriate.  

 

The Licensing Objectives 
 
1.4 The 2003 Act requires the Council to carry out its various licensing functions 

so as to promote the four licensing objectives. These are:  
 

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

• The Protection of Children From Harm 
 
 These are the only four matters to which the Local Authority can have regard 

 
1.5 Applicants will have to set out details within their operating schedule 

measures which are of the right kind and go far enough to meet each of 
the four licensing objectives. Applicants will need to provide evidence 
that these measures will be put in place and maintained. The applicant 
will in the same way also have to set out support with evidence any 
measures needed to deal with any special event or promotion, which is 
likely to attract more customers than usual.                                                                  

17



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 2 of 41  

 
Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
1.6 The 2003 Act further requires that the Council publishes a ‘Statement of 

Licensing Policy’ that sets out the policies the Council will generally apply to 
promote the licensing objectives when making decisions on applications made 
under the Act.  

 
1.7 This ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ has been prepared in accordance with 

the provisions of the 2003 Act and having regard to the guidance issued 
under Section 182 of the Act. It has been drafted in partnership with the Essex 
Joint Licensing Officers’ Forum and the Harlow Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership (Safer Harlow Partnership). These partnerships provide links to 
the Essex Chief Executives’ Association’s Crime and Disorder Steering 
Group, who will maintain a strategic overview of issues associated with 
permissions issued under the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
1.8 This Policy Statement takes effect on 7 January 2014 and will remain in force 

for a period of not more than 5 years. It will be subject to regular review and 
further consultation prior to 7 January 2019. 

 
1.9 From time to time the Government update the Regulations and Guidance 

made under the Licensing Act 2003.  In having regard to these changes it is 
possible that this Policy will have to undergo further interim reviews to take 
into account of and implement any relevant changes. 

 
1.10 Supplementary information contained in the appendices is available to support 

this Policy Statement.  It is intended that this will provide local information 
which may be helpful to applicants.  It should not be interpreted as legal 
advice. 

 

Consultation 
 
1.11 There are a number of groups who have a stake in the leisure industry, 

including providers, customers, residents and enforcers, all of whom have 
views and concerns that require consideration as part of the licensing function 
and promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
1.12 In developing this Policy Statement, the Council consulted widely. Along with 

the statutory consultees (Responsible Authorities), the views of existing 
licence holders, businesses, voluntary groups, residents and relevant Harlow 
Council Services were also taken into account. Due consideration was given 
to the views of all those who responded to that consultation process. 

 
Links to other Strategies 
 
1.13 In preparing this statement of licensing policy, the Council has consulted with 

and has considered the responses of those involved in its local strategies on 
crime prevention, planning, public transport, culture, tourism and economic 
development, to ensure the proper co-ordination and integration of the aims 

18



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 3 of 41  

and actions of these policies. Review and amendment of these strategies will 
be considered for their impact on this statement of licensing policy. 

 
1.14 Further, arrangements will be made for the Licensing Committee to receive 

reports, when appropriate, on the needs of the local tourist economy to 
ensure that these are reflected in their considerations. The Licensing 
Committee will also be apprised of the local employment situation and the 
need for new investment and employment, where appropriate. 

 
1.15 To ensure proper integration with the Council’s planning policies, the 

Licensing Committee will provide reports to the Planning Committee, where 
appropriate, on the situation regarding licensed premises in the area, 
including the general impact of alcohol related crime and disorder, to enable 
the planning committee to have regard to such matters when making its 
decisions. 

 
1.16 The Council recognises its responsibilities under the Race Relations Act, 

1976, as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act, 2000. The 
impact of this policy on race relations will be monitored through the Council’s 
race equality scheme. 

 
1.17 Having regard to the Council’s Leisure and Cultural strategy and the 

International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR), 
ratified in 1976, a diverse provision of cultural activities is welcomed for the 
benefit of communities. The Council will monitor the licensing of regulated 
entertainment, especially with regard to live music and dancing, theatrical 
performances, circuses, etc. where these remain licensable activities, to 
ensure that such events are promoted without unreasonable restrictions 
being imposed, which would discourage such events. The Council will need 
to balance the natural concern to prevent disturbance in neighbourhoods with 
the wider cultural benefits, particularly the cultural benefits for children. 
Advice and guidance on this matter will be sought from the Council’s Arts 
Development Officer.  

 
Applications 
 
1.18  When considering applications etc. the Council will have regard to: 
 

• The Licensing Act 2003 and the licensing objectives, 

• Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, 

• Any supporting regulations 
• This statement of licensing policy 

 
1.19 This does not however undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 

2003 Act for a variety of permissions and have the application considered on 
its individual merits, nor does it override the right of any person to make 
representations on any application or seek a review of a licence or certificate 
where they are permitted to do so under the 2003 Act. 
 

1.20 When the Council is considering any application, it will avoid duplication with 
other regulatory regimes, so far as possible, and does not intend to use the 

19



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 4 of 41  

licensing regime to achieve outcomes that can be achieved by other 
legislation. In particular, its licensing functions will be discharged separately 
from its functions as the local planning authority. However, applications for 
premises licences for permanent commercial premises should normally 
be from businesses with planning consent for the property concerned. 
(Other permissions may be applicable to licensed premises and applicants 
are expected to ensure that such permissions are obtained where 
necessary.)  
 

1.21 When one part of the Council seeks a premises licence from the licensing 
authority, the licensing committee and its officers will consider the matter from 
an entirely neutral standpoint. If relevant representations are made, for 
example by local residents or the police the committee will consider them 
impartially and objectively.  

 
1.22 In all cases, applicants and those making representation in respect of 

applications to the Council have a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 
against the decisions of the Council. 

 
1.23 Appendix E provides applicants with the details of the application process, 

having regard to the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations, statutory guidance 
and local practice and procedures. 

 
Representations 
 
1.24 Essex Police, Essex County Fire and Rescue Service, Essex Trading 

Standards, the Enforcing Authority for Health and Safety purposes, the local 
Planning Authority, the Environmental Health Housing and Pollution Section, 
the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority in its own right, the local 
health body, and the Child Protection Authority are all known as ‘Responsible 
Authorities’. These responsible authorities may make representations on 
applications, so far as they relate to the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives, and request reviews once licences have been granted. 

 
1.25 Persons who live in or are involved in a business in the relevant licensing 

authority area, or their representatives, are free to raise relevant 
representations.  A representation would only be ‘relevant’ if it relates to the 
effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the four 
licensing objectives. In addition, the representation must not be frivolous or 
vexatious, and in the case of reviews, in addition, not repetitious. 

 
1.26 It is only when well founded relevant representations are received, that the 

Licensing Authority may hold a hearing.  It will pay particular attention at any 
hearing whether to impose extra conditions, in addition to any which may 
already be included in the operating schedule, with a view to promoting the 
objectives. 

 
1.27 Where no representations are received, the application must be granted on 

the terms sought by the applicant. 
 
 

20



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 5 of 41  

 
Conditions 
 
1.28 Licensing is about the appropriate control of licensed premises, qualifying 

clubs, temporary events and the people who manage them or hold personal 
licences within the terms of the 2003 Act. Where relevant representations are 
made, the Council will make objective judgements as to whether it should 
attach conditions to a licence to secure achievement of the licensing 
objectives. Any conditions arising from the operating schedule, or as a result 
of representations, will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at licensed premises on those attending the premises and 
members of the public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity 
in the area concerned. The conditions will cover matters that are within the 
control of individual licensees. 

 
1.29 Harlow Council acknowledges that the licensing function cannot be used for 

the general control of the anti-social behaviour of individuals once they are 
beyond the direct control of the licensee of any premises concerned. 
However, other mechanisms may be used, where appropriate, to tackle the 
unruly or unlawful behaviour of consumers when beyond the control of the 
individual, club or business holding the licence. These include: 

 

• Planning controls  

• Positive measures to create a safe and clean town environment in 
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
departments of the local authority 

• The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, 
provision of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and 
litter patrols  

• Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area 
as places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly 

• Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-
social behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices 

• The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at 
such premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk 

• The confiscation of alcohol from children and adults in designated areas 

• Police and/or local authority powers to close down instantly for up to 24 
hours any licensed premises or temporary events on grounds of 
disorder, the likelihood of disorder or noise emanating from the 
premises causing a nuisance 

• The power of the police, other responsible authorities or a local 
resident or business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in 
question 

• Hackney carriage and private hire licensing arrangements 

• The effective licensing of tables and chairs (facilities) outside of 
licensed premises 

 
1.30 If an applicant volunteers a prohibition or restriction in their operating 

schedule because it has been identified as a result of their own risk 

21



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 6 of 41  

assessment, such volunteered prohibitions or restrictions will become 
conditions attached to the licence, or certificate and will be enforceable.  

 
1.31 The Council recognises that all applications should be considered on an 

individual basis. In order to avoid the imposition of disproportionate or 
burdensome conditions, any conditions attached to a licence will be tailored 
to the individual premises. Standard conditions, other than mandatory 
conditions, will therefore be avoided and no condition will be imposed that 
cannot be shown to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
Delegation of Functions 
 
1.32 With the exception of the approval and review of its Licensing Policy, 

decisions on licensing matters will be taken in accordance with an approved 
scheme of delegation so that decisions are made quickly and efficiently. A 
table setting out how the licensing authority intends to approach its various 
functions is attached at Appendix A.  The Licensing Committee will receive 
regular reports regarding licences determined by Officers under delegated 
powers, in order to maintain a general overview.  

 
The Need for Licensed Premises 
 
1.33 There can be confusion about the difference between “need” and the  

“cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives. “Need” concerns 
the commercial demand for another pub, off licence, restaurant or hotel etc. 
This is not a matter for a licensing authority in discharging its licensing 
functions or for its statement of licensing policy.  

 
Cumulative Impact of a Concentration of Licensed Premises  
 

1.34 “Cumulative impact” means the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated 
in one area. This is a proper matter for a licensing authority to consider in 
developing its licensing policy statement. 

 
1.35 The Council acknowledges that a concentration of licensed premises in a 

particular area can result in an increased number of people walking through or 
congregating in streets during the night with the potential impact of an 
increase in crime, anti-social behaviour, noise and other disturbance to 
residents, together with an increase in littering or fouling. In such cases the 
amenity of local residents can be placed under severe pressure, which may 
not be attributable to any individual premises. 

 
1.36 The Council should only adopt a special policy on cumulative impact if there is 

evidence that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one 
area is resulting in unacceptable levels of crime and disorder or public 
nuisance. 

 

1.37 The Council, having regard to the evidence currently available, 
considers that there is no particular part of the district where a 

22



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 7 of 41  

concentration of premises is causing a cumulative impact on any of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
1.38 However, the cumulative impact of licensed premises in a particular area 

may, at a future time, on representation from residents or businesses or a 
responsible authority, trigger the consideration of whether any additional 
licences or substantial variations to existing licences, would lead to an 
unacceptable saturation in an area. The onus will be on the person or body 
making the representation to provide suitable evidence to warrant a 
consideration of whether cumulative impact exists. 

 
Late Night Levy 
 
1.39 The Licensing Authority has at its disposal, the power to implement a Late           

Night levy. This power has been available since October 2012.  
 

1.40 The Levy is a means of raising funds from businesses which are licensed to 
open after midnight in order to help police the negative impact of the late 
night economy. The money raised by the Levy is shared with the Police on a 
70%/30% split after Local Authority costs have been deducted. 
 

 
1.41 The Local Authority’s 30% share must be spent on managing the effects of 

the night time economy.  
 

1.42 The Late Night Levy is a discretionary power and can be implemented by the 
Licensing Committee should it be deemed appropriate to do so. 

 
1.43 The Levy covers the whole district and affects all businesses which hold a 

licence to open during the hours adopted by the Levy irrespective of whether 
the business chooses to open during those hours or not. 

 
1.44 In making such a decision, the Licensing Committee will take into account 

evidence from any of the Responsible Authorities about negative impact of 
the night time economy and consult with affected businesses as well as 
publishing its intention to implement a Levy for general public perusal and 
comment.  

 
Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Order 
 
1.45 Licensing Authority’s may implement an Early Morning Alcohol Restriction       

Order (EMRO) if it so chooses. 
 
1.46 An EMRO allows the Licensing Authority to require businesses to stop 

serving alcohol between the hours specified by the Order. 
 

1.47 The EMRO can apply to part of the district as opposed the Late Night Levy 
which must apply to the whole district. 

 

23



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 8 of 41  

1.48 The Licensing Authority be satisfied that there is enough evidence of a 
negative impact of the night time economy in the area to which the EMRO will  
apply. 

 
1.49 Before applying the EMRO, the Licensing Authority will consult with 

Responsible Authorities, local businesses, particularly those to be affected by 
the Order and publish its intention to implement an Order for general public 
perusal and comment. 

 
 
Advice and Guidance 
 
1.50 The Licensing Authority recognises the valuable cultural, social and business 

importance that premises and events requiring a licence under the Licensing 
Act provide and welcomes the diversity of activities that are provided by 
licence holders.  

 
1.51 Pre-application discussions will be encouraged to assist applicants to develop 

their operating schedule. Essex Police and/or Essex County Fire and Rescue 
Service will offer as much advice and guidance to applicants, as resources 
permit.  

 
1.52 The Licensing Authority will also seek to liaise with applicants and/or mediate 

between applicants and others who may make representations, to achieve a 
satisfactory outcome for all involved, wherever possible and where resources 
permit. Where an applicant considers that mediation and liaison may be likely 
or probable, it is recommended that the applicant discuss his proposal with the 
Licensing Team and those from whom they think representations are likely 
prior to submitting their application. Once an application has been lodged, 
there are statutory timescales imposed upon the application and determination 
process, which restrict the opportunity for such discussions, liaison and 
mediation. 

 
1.53 Appendices C and D provide details of various organisations, trade 

associations and reference literature that an applicant may find useful in 
preparing an operating schedule and running a safe premises/event. 

 
Reviews 
 
1.54 Where appropriate any Responsible Authority will give early warning to 

licence holders of any concerns about problems identified at premises and of 
the need for improvement. 

 
1.55 Responsible authorities or persons who live or are involved in a business in 

the relevant licensing area can trigger a review of a premises licence but 
would have to support their case with evidence. 

 
1.56 No more than one review from or persons who live or are involved in a 

business in the relevant licensing area will be normally permitted within a 12-
month period on similar grounds except in exceptional and compelling 
circumstances. 

24



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 9 of 41  

 
  
Enforcement 
 
1.57   The Council recognises the interests of both citizens and businesses and will 

work closely with partners, to assist licence holders to comply with the law and 
the four licensing objectives it seeks to promote. However, proportionate but 
firm action will be taken against those who commit offences or consistently 
break the law. The Council has set clear standards of service and 
performance that the public and businesses can expect. In particular, it has 
adopted a Licensing Enforcement Policy that explains how the Council will 
undertake its role as Licensing Authority and how the principles of effective 
enforcement will be followed. This policy is freely available from the Licensing 
Department and can also be viewed on the Council’s website: 
www.harlow.gov.uk 

 
1.58 The Enforcement Policy is based on the principles that businesses should: 
 

• Receive clear explanations from enforcers of what they need to do and by   
          when; 

• Have opportunities to resolve differences before enforcement action is 
taken - unless immediate action is needed; 

• Receive an explanation of their rights of appeal 
 
1.59   The Council has established an enforcement protocol with Essex Police, 

Essex County Fire and Rescue Service and Essex County Council Trading 
Standards. This protocol provides for the targeting of resources towards high-
risk premises and activities that require greater attention, while providing a 
lighter touch in respect of low risk premises that are well operated. 
 
 

2.0 LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 
2.1 The following sections set out the Council’s Policy relating specifically to the 

four licensing objectives:  
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 
2.2 In each section relating to the objectives, the Council has defined its intended 

outcome in bold type. Each section then lists the influencing factors on the 
achievement of that objective but, because of the wide variety of premises 
and activities to which this policy applies, the lists provided are not 
exhaustive. Applicants should know their premises best and will be 
expected to address all aspects relevant to the individual style and 
characteristics of their premises and events.  Pre-application discussions 
with the Responsible Authorities are encouraged to assist applicants to 
develop their operating schedule. 

 

25



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 10 of 41  

2.3 Further, in each section, a list of possible control measures is provided, to be 
of assistance to applicants, but again it is not intended to be an exhaustive 
list. Many control measures achieve more than one objective but have not 
necessarily been listed under each objective. Similarly, applicants will not be 
required to mention a control measure more than once in their operating 
schedule. 

 
2.4 The selection of control measures, referred to in 2.3 above, should be 

based upon a risk assessment of the premises, events, activities and 
the customers expected to attend (e.g. their age, number, etc.). Whilst 
the Council cannot require such risk assessments to be documented, (other 
than where required by other legislation), it considers such documentation to 
be good practice. It will be a useful tool in the instruction and training of staff, 
as well as a sound basis in the event of making an application for a variation 
or in response to changing circumstances/conditions at the premises. 

 
2.5 Additional measures may be necessary on an occasional or specific basis 

such as when a special event (e.g. popular live band) or promotion (e.g. 
during major sporting occasions) is planned. These occasions can often 
attract larger audiences and/or audiences of a different nature, and this can 
have a significant impact on the achievement of the licensing objectives. 
Reference must be made in an applicant’s operating schedule, where 
applicable, to such occasions and the additional measures that are 
planned in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
2.6 The Council considers the effective and responsible management of the 

premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of 
best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures for the 
achievement of all the licensing objectives. For this reason, these elements 
should be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant’s 
operating schedule. 

 
2.7 In addition, the occupancy capacity for premises, and events as appropriate, 

is also considered to be an essential factor in the achievement of the four 
licensing objectives, (except in respect of premises licensed for the 
consumption of food and/or alcohol off the premises).  
 
The Council will expect the issue of occupancy capacity to be 
considered and addressed, where necessary, within an applicant’s 
operating schedule and will agree/determine a maximum occupancy 
capacity, based on this assessment. 

 
2.8 The design and layout of premises are important in determining capacity, as 

is the availability and size of exits within recommended travel distances. 
Other factors should also be considered when assessing the appropriate 
capacity for premises or events. These include: 

 

• The nature of the premises or event 

• The nature of the licensable activities being provided 
 

26



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 11 of 41  

• The provision or removal of temporary structures, such as a stage, or 
furniture 

• The number of staff available to supervise customers both ordinarily and 
in the event of an emergency 

• The age of the customers 

• The attendance by customers with disabilities, or whose first language is 
not English 

• Availability of suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation 

• Nature and provision of facilities for ventilation 
 
2.9 The agreement to a capacity for premises or events should not be interpreted 

as a requirement to also provide permanent monitoring arrangements such 
as door supervisors, attendance clickers or maintenance of attendance 
records. The Council recognises that the person in charge at the premises 
can often readily assess the occupancy level of the premises without resort to 
such measures. However, where the capacity is likely to be reached 
(such as on known busy evenings) and particularly where a special 
event or promotion is planned, the applicant will be expected to detail 
the additional arrangements that will be put in place to ensure that the 
capacity of the premises is not exceeded. 

 
2.10 The licensing authority will consider applications for minor variations to 

premises licences, providing that the authority is satisfied that the variation will 
not adversely impact on the licensing objectives and the licensing authority will 
consult with responsible authorities whom they deem necessary to make such 
assessment. 

 
 
3.0 PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
 
3.1 Harlow Council is committed to further improving the quality of life for the 

people of the District of Harlow by continuing to reduce crime and the fear of 
crime.  

 
3.2 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of 

measures for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on Harlow 
Council, Essex Police, Essex County Council and others to consider crime 
and disorder reduction in the exercise of all their duties. The Licensing Act 
2003 reinforces this duty for local authorities. 

 

3.3 The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and disorder, 
places a responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in achieving 
this objective.  

 
Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule 
that suitable and sufficient measures to reduce or prevent crime and 
disorder on and in the vicinity of their premises have been identified and 
will be implemented and maintained. The measures will be relevant to 
the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. 

 

27



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 12 of 41  

3.4 When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should 
demonstrate that those factors, which impact on crime and disorder, have 
been considered. These may include: 

 
• Underage drinking 
• Drunkenness on premises 
• Public drunkenness 
• Drugs 
• Violent behaviour 
• Anti-social behaviour 

 
3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants 

who may need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having 
regard to their particular type of premises and/or activities.  The list is not 
exhaustive and the examples given will not be applicable in all cases. 

 
• Effective and responsible management of premises 
• Documented staff training 
• Supervision of staff 
• Number of personal licence holders present 
• Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Safer Clubbing, the 

Government’s Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy ‘Safe. Sensible. Social.’ 
and other voluntary codes of practice, including those relating to drinks 
promotions e.g. The Point of Sale Promotions published by BBPA, 
Security in Design published by BBPA and Drugs and Pubs, published by 
BBPA) 

• Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards e.g. PASS, locally 
approved ‘proof of age’ cards and/or ‘new type’ driving licences with 
photographs and/or passports 

• Adoption of a ‘Challenge 25’ policy. An approved ID must be provided to 
prove that they are over 18 years of age.  

• Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises with the retention of 
images for a suitable period 

• Design and seating layout 
• Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed doorstaff 
• Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels 
• Provision of secure, deposit boxes for confiscated items (‘sin bins’) 
• Provision of litterbins and other security measures, such as lighting, 

outside premises 
• Membership of local ‘Pubwatch’ schemes or similar organisations 
 
Pre-application discussions with the Responsible Authorities are encouraged 
to assist applicants to develop their operating schedule. 

 
3.6 Within the operating schedule for premises from which alcohol will be sold, 

with the exception of qualifying community premises, a Premises Supervisor 
must be designated (‘Designated Premises Supervisor’ DPS). The Council 
will normally expect the DPS to have been given the day to day responsibility 
for running the premises by the premises licence holder and so would expect 
the DPS be present on the licensed premises on a regular basis. In addition 
to the DPS holding a personal licence, the Council would strongly encourage 

28



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 13 of 41  

the DPS to undergo additional training, and to have experience 
commensurate with the nature and style of any regulated entertainment 
provided and the capacity of the premises.  

 
3.7 A licence is not needed for certain temporary events but the Temporary Event 

Notice procedure can be used to notify the Council, Essex Police and 
Environmental Health Services. Certain events not needing a premises 
licence can, however, have serious implications on all four licence objectives. 
Organisers of these events are encouraged to submit their notification as 
soon as reasonably practicable to enable the Police, Environmental Health 
Services and the Council to work with them to identify and reduce the risk to 
the licensing objectives.  

 
 
4.0 PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
4.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to ensuring that the safety of any 

person visiting or working in licensed premises is not compromised.   
 
To this end, applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their 
operating schedule that suitable and sufficient measures to ensure 
public safety have been identified and will be implemented and 
maintained. These will be relevant to the individual style and 
characteristics of their premises and events.   

 
4.2 When addressing the issue of public safety, an applicant must demonstrate 

that those factors, which impact on the standards of public safety, have been 
considered. These may include: 

 

• The occupancy capacity of the premises 

• The age, design and layout of the premises, evacuation procedures, and 
fire resistance of materials and furnishings 

• The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the 
sale or supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and 
including whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature 

• The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the 
hours when licensable activities are provided, if different) 

• Customer profile (e.g. age, disability) 

• The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, 
foam machines, etc. 

• Automatic fire detection systems and emergency lighting. 
 
4.3 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants 

who may need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having 
regard to their particular type of premises and/or activities. The list is not 
exhaustive and the examples given will not be applicable in all cases. 

 
• Suitable and sufficient risk assessments  

• Effective and responsible management of premises 

29



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 14 of 41  

• Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to 
secure the safety of the premises and patrons 

• Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed doorstaff  

• Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged to secure the safety of the premises and patrons 

• Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Guide to Fire Precautions in 
Existing Places of Entertainment and Like Premises, The Event Safety 
Guide) 

• Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises 

• Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels 

• Implementation of crowd management measures 

• Proof of regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of 
procedures, appliances, systems etc. pertinent to safety 

 
Pre-application discussions with the Responsible Authorities are encouraged 
to assist applicants to develop their operating schedule. 

 
 
5.0 PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
5.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on 

communities through public nuisances that arise from their operation.   
The Council wishes to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and 
other businesses from the consequence of the operation of licensed premises 
whilst recognising the valuable cultural, social and business importance that 
such premises provide. 

 

5.2 The Council intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest sense, and 
takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social 
behaviour, where these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise 
engaged in normal activity in an area. 

 

5.3 Applicants need to be clear that the Council will normally apply stricter 
conditions, including controls on licensing hours, where licensed premises are 
in residential areas and where relevant representations have been received. 
Conversely, premises for which it can be demonstrated effective measures 
planned to prevent public nuisance are in place, may be suitable for longer 
opening hours. 

 
5.4 In the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Council will 

normally permit the hours during which alcohol is sold to match the normal 
trading hours during which other sales take place, unless there are 
exceptional reasons relating to disturbance or disorder. 

 
5.5 Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule 

that suitable and sufficient measures to prevent public nuisance have 
been identified and will be implemented and maintained. These will be 
relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and 
events.   

 

30



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 15 of 41  

5.6 When addressing the issue of prevention of public nuisance, the applicant 
must demonstrate that those factors, which impact on the likelihood of public 
nuisance, have been considered. These may include: 

• The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise 
sensitive premises, such as hospitals, hospices and places of worship 

• The hours of opening, particularly between 23.00 and 07.00. 

• The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities 
are of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held 
inside or outside premises 

• The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise 
limiting features e.g. noise limiter, sealed thresholds, air cooling 

• Provision of facilities for smokers in line with Health Act 2006 

• The occupancy capacity of the premises 

• The availability of local public transport including hackney carriages and 
private hire vehicles 

• ‘Wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and 
closure of the premises  

• Last admission time 
 
5.7 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants 

who may need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having 
regard to their particular type of premises and/or activities. The list is not 
exhaustive and the examples given will not be applicable in all cases. 

 

• Effective and responsible management of premises 

• Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance, e.g. to ensure 
customers leave quietly 

• Control of operating hours for all or parts (e.g. garden areas) of premises, 
including such matters as deliveries 

• Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good Practice Guide on the 
Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of 
Acoustics, Licensed Property: Noise, published by BBPA)  

• Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limitation devices 

• Management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues) 
arriving and leaving premises, including dispersal policies 

• Liaison with public transport providers 

• Siting of external lighting, including security lighting 

• Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter including 
smoking-related litter 

• Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour  

• Siting of smoking areas in relation to adjoining residential areas 
 
 Pre-application discussions with the Responsible Authorities are encouraged 

to assist applicants to develop their operating schedule. 
 
 
6.0 PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM  
 

31



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 16 of 41  

6.1 The protection of children from harm is a most important issue. It is hoped 
that family friendly premises will thrive, but the risk of harm to children 
remains a paramount consideration when determining applications. 

 
6.2 The general relaxation in the Licensing Act giving accompanied children 

greater access to licensed premises is a positive step, aimed at bringing 
about a social change in family friendly leisure. Clearly this relaxation places 
additional responsibilities upon licence holders. However, it is recognised that 
parents and others accompanying children also have responsibilities.  

 
6.3 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from 

moral, psychological and physical harm and in relation to the exhibition of 
films, or transmission of programmes or videos, this includes the protection of 
children from exposure to strong language and sexual expletives. In certain 
circumstances children are more vulnerable and their needs will require 
special consideration. Examples would include topless bar staff, striptease, 
lap, table or pole dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific 
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment 
involving strong and offensive language. This vulnerability includes their 
susceptibility to suggestion, peer group influences, the unpredictability of their 
age and the lack of understanding of danger.  Premises which are licensed as 
sexual entertainment venues under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 will be subject to additional regulation to protect children 
from harm. 

 
6.4 For premises that sell or supply alcohol one of the main issues in respect of 

the protection of children from harm is in preventing the unauthorised access 
to it by underage persons. 

 
6.5 The Council considers that, on the one hand, there should be no presumption 

of giving children access or, on the other hand, no presumption of preventing 
their access to licensed premises. The Council has no intention of imposing 
conditions requiring the admission of children and, where no licensing 
restriction is necessary, admission of children will remain entirely a matter for 
the discretion of the individual licensee or club, or person who has given a 
temporary event notice.   

 
6.6 Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule 

that suitable and sufficient measures to protect children from harm 
have been identified and will be implemented and maintained. These will 
be relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises 
and events.   

 
6.7 Whilst children may be adequately protected from harm by the action taken to 

protect adults, they may also need special consideration and no policy can 
anticipate every situation. When addressing the issue of protecting children 
from harm, the applicant must demonstrate that those factors that impact on 
harm to children have been considered. Areas that will give particular 
concern in respect of children include:  

 

32



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 17 of 41  

• where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are 
commonly provided 

• where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage 
drinking 

• with a known association with drug taking or dealing 

• where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises, and 

• where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the 
exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises. 

 
6.8 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants 

and are considered to be amongst the most essential that applicants should 
take account of in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular 
type of premises and/or activities. The list is not exhaustive and the examples 
given will not be applicable in all cases. 

 

• Effective and responsible management of premises 

• Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed doorstaff 

• Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to 
secure the protection of children from harm 

• Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged to secure the protection of children from harm 

• Adoption of best practice guidance (Public Places Charter, The Portman 
Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 
Alcoholic Drinks) 

• Limitations on the hours when children may be present, in all or parts of 
the premises 

• Limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place 

• Imposition of requirements for children to be accompanied by an adult 

• Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards and/or ‘new type’ driving 
licences with photographs 

• Measures to ensure children do not purchase, acquire or consume 
alcohol (eg ‘Challenge 25’ scheme) 

• Measures to ensure children are not exposed to incidences of violence or 
disorder 

• Appropriate siting and supervision of Amusements with Prizes machines 
 
These examples can be adopted in any combination.  Pre-application 
discussions with the Responsible Authorities are encouraged to assist 
applicants to develop their operating schedule. 

 
6.9 With regard to film exhibitions. The Council will expect licence and 

certificate holders, and those who have given notice of a temporary 
event within the terms of the 2003 Act, to implement measures that 
restrict children from viewing age-restricted films classified according 
to the recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or 
the Council. In the case of a film exhibition that has not been classified, 
the Council will expect the licensee to conduct an assessment of the 
suitability of the film for exhibition to children and to implement 
measures that restrict viewing by children if necessary. 

33



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 18 of 41  

 
6.10  If considered appropriate, the licensing authority may require that adult 

supervisors be checked for suitability to work with children.  
 
6.11 The Council will rarely impose complete bans on access to children. In 

exceptional circumstances, conditions restricting access or excluding children 
completely may be considered necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
List of Appendices 
 
A. Delegation of Powers 
B. Relevant Authorities:  Contact Details 
C. Useful Addresses 
D. References to Best Practice Guides 
E. The Application Process 
F. Objections/Representations/Reviews and Appeals 

34



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 19 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 
 

APPENDIX A – LICENSING ACT 2003 - DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 
 
 

Matter to be dealt with  
 

Full Council Sub Committee of 
Licensing Cttee 

Environment & 
Licensing Manager 

Final approval of five year 
licensing policy 

All cases   

Application for personal 
licence 

 If a police objection If no objection made 

Application for personal 
licence with unspent 
convictions 

 All cases  

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made/ 
representations have 
been withdrawn 

Application for 
provisional statement 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made/ 
representations have 
been withdrawn 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made/ 
representations have 
been withdrawn 

Application to vary 
designated premises 
supervisor 

 If a police objection All other cases 

Request to be removed 
as designated premises 
supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer 
of premises licence 

 If a police objection All other cases 

Applications for interim 
Authorities 

 If a police objection All other cases 

Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant 
frivolous vexatious etc 

  All cases 

Decision to object when 
local authority is a 
consultee and not the 
relevant authority 
considering the 
application 

 All cases  

Determination of a 
police objection to a 
temporary event notice 

 All cases  

Determination of 
application to vary 
premises licence at 

 If a police objection All other cases 

35



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 20 of 41  

community premises to 
include alternative licence 
condition 

 
Decision whether to 
consult other responsible 
authorities on minor 
variation application 

   
All cases 

Determination of minor 
variation application 

  All cases 

 
 
 
Following a decision by a Licensing Sub Committee and a subsequent appeal to the 
Magistrates Court, if an offer is made to vary the original decision this will be determined by 
the Strategic Director in consultation with any two of the following three Members: Chair of 
the Licensing Committee, Vice Chair of the Licensing Committee or Chair of the Community 
and Citizenship Working Group. 
 
Agreed by Executive Committee      [DATE] 

36



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 21 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

APPENDIX B – RELEVANT AUTHORITIES:  CONTACT DETAILS 
 

 Organisation Contact Address Telephone/Fax /E:mail 

1 
 

Licensing Authority Harlow Council 
Licensing Team 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
Essex    CM20 1WG 
 

 
Tel:  01279 446561 
Tel:  01279 446005 
 
Fax:  01279 446639 
 
licensing@harlow.gov.uk 

2 
 

Essex Police 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Essex Police Divisional 
Licensing Unit (Harlow)  
Harlow Police Station 
The High 
Harlow 
Essex     CM20 1HG 
 

 
Tel:  101 
 
Fax:  01279 625476 
 
 

3 Planning Services 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Head of Planning Services 
Harlow Council 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
Essex     CM20 1WG 

 

  
Tel:  01279 446655 
 
Fax:  01279 446598 
 
 

4 Essex Child 
Protection 
Committee 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Head of Child Protection 
(Licensing Applications) 
Essex County Council 
PO Box 297 
Chelmsford 
Essex 
CM1 1YS 
 

 
Tel:  01245 341932 
 
licenceapplications@essex
cc.gov.uk 

5 Essex County Fire 
and Rescue Service 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Essex Fire and Rescue 
Service 
Harlow and Epping 
Community Command 
(Licensing) 
Harlow Service Delivery 
Point 
Fourth Avenue 
Harlow 
Essex     CM20 1DU 
 

 
Tel:  01279 420841 
 
he.command@essex-
fire.gov.uk 

6 Essex Trading 
Standards 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Information and Business 
Support Team  
Essex Trading Standards  
New Dukes Way Office 
2 Beaufort Road 
Dukes Park Industrial Estate 
Chelmsford 
Essex     CM2 6PS 
 
 

 

37



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 22 of 41  

7 Environmental 
Health Services 
(Housing and 
Pollution) 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Environmental Health 
Manager 
Harlow Council 
Housing and Pollution 
Section 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
Essex     CM20 1WG 
 

 
Tel:  01279 446111 
 
Fax:  01279 446639 
 
env.health@harlow.gov.uk 

8 Environmental 
Health Services  
(Commercial Section 
– Health and Safety) 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Environmental Health 
Manager 
Harlow Council  
Commercial Section 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
Essex   CM20 1WG 
 

 
Tel:  01279 446111 
 
Fax:  01279 446639 
 
env.health@harlow.gov.uk 

9 Health and Safety 
Executive 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

The Health and Safety 
Executive 
Wren House 
Hedgerows Business Park 
Colchester Road 
Chelmsford 
Essex     CM2 5PF 

 

 
Tel:  01245 706200 
 
Fax:  01245 706222 

10 Health Authority 
 
(Responsible 
Authority) 

Licensing Officer 
Public Health Team 
A1 
County Hall 
Chelmsford 
CM1 1LX 

 
Tel:  01245 437621 

11 Licensing Authority 
 
(Responsible  
Authority) 

Environmental Health 
Manager 
Harlow Council  
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
Essex   CM20 1WG 

 

Tel:  01279 446111 
 
Fax:  01279 446639 
 
env.health@harlow.gov.uk 

 

38



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 23 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

APPENDIX C – USEFUL ADDRESSES 

 
Alcohol Concern  
Suite B5 
West Wing 
New City Cloisters 
196 Old Street 
EC1V 9FR 

Tel:      020 566 9800 
Web:    www.alcoholconcern.org.uk  
Email:   contact@alcoholconcern.org.uk 

Arts Council England  
14 Great Peter Street  
London  
SW1P 2NQ  
 

Tel:       0845 300 6200  
Email:   www.artscouncil.org.uk 

Association of Convenience Stores Ltd  
Federation House  
17 Farnborough Street  
Farnborough  
GU14 8AG  

Tel:     01252 515001  
Email:  acs@acs.org.uk  

Association of Licensed Multiple 
Retailers  
9B Walpole Court  
Ealing Studios  
London, W5 5ED  
 

Tel:      020 8579 2080  
Email:  info@almr.org.uk 
Web:    www.almr.org.uk 

British Beer and Pub Association  
Ground Floor 
Brewers Hall 
Aldermanbury Square 
London 
EC2V 7HR  

Tel:     020 7627 9199  
Email:  contact@beernadpub.com 
Web:   www.beerandpub.com 
 

British Board of Film Classification  
3 Soho Square  
London  
W1D 3HD  

Tel:      020 7440 1570  
Email:  helpline@bbfc.co.uk 
Web:   www.bbfc.co.uk 
 

British Institute of Innkeeping (BII)  
Wessex House  
80 Park Street  
Camberley, Surrey 
GU15 3PT  

Tel:     01276 684449  
Email: reception@bii.org 
Web:   www.bii.org  

British Retail Consortium (BRC) 
21 Dartmouth Street 
London 
SW1H 9BP 
 

Web:  www.brc.org.uk/default.asp 

Campaign for Real Ale  
230 Hatfield Road  
St Albans  
Herts  
AL1 4LW  
 

Tel:    01727 867201  
Web:  camra@camra.org.uk  
Email: 
  www.camra.org.uk  

39



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 24 of 41  

Civic Trust  
Winchester House 259-269 Old 
Marylebone Road  
London NW1 5RA  

Tel:    020 7170 4299  
Web:   www.civictrust.org.uk  

Department for Culture, Media and Sport  
2-4 Cockspur Street  
London  
SW1Y 5DH  

Tel:    020 7211 6200  
Web:   www.culture.gov.uk  

Equity  
Guild House  
Upper Martins Lane  
London  
WC2H 9EG  

Tel:     020 7379 6000  
Email: info@equity.org.uk 
Web:   www.equity.org.uk 
 

Essex Chamber of Commerce  
8/9 St Peters Court 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO1 1WD  
 

Tel:      01206 765277  
Email:  enquiries@essexchambers.co.uk 
Web:    www.essexchambers.co.uk  

Essex Racal Equality Council  
Floor 3, Civic Centre  
Victoria Street  
Southend on Sea  
Essex  
SS2 6EP  

Tel:      01702 333351  
Email:  Erec.Southend@btconnect.com 
Web:    www.cre.gov.uk  

Harlow & District Chamber of Commerce 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 
CM20 1WG 
 

Tel:    01279 271104 

Independent Street Arts Network (ISAN)  
54 Charlton Street 
London 
NW1 1HS  

Tel:     020 7388 9767  
Web:   www.streetartsnetwork.org.uk  

Institute of Acoustics  
77a St Peters Street  
St Albans  
Hertfordshire  
AL1 3BN  

Tel:     01727 848195  
Email:  ioa@ioa.org.uk 
Web:   www.ioa.org.uk  

Institute of Licensing 
45 Larcombe Road 
St Austell 
Cornwall 
PL25 3EY 
 

Web:   www.instituteoflicensing.org 

Musicians’ Union  
1a Fentiman Road 
London 
SW8 1LD  

Tel:     020 7840 5537  
Web:  www.musiciansunion.org.uk  

40



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 25 of 41  

 

National Federation of Retail 
Newsagents  
Yeoman House  
Sekforde Street  
London  
EC1R 0HF  

Tel:     020 7253 4225  
Email:  service@nfrnonline.com 
Web:   www.nfrn.org.uk  

Security Industry Authority  
PO Box 1293 
Liverpool 
L69 1AX 

Tel:     0844 892 1025  
web:    www.the-sia.org.uk  

The Portman Group  
4
TH
 Floor 

20 Conduit Street 
London 
W1S 2XW  

Tel:     020 7290 1460 
Email:  info@portmangroup.org.uk 
Web:  www.portmangroup.org.uk 

Valuation Office  
London House  
New London Road  
Chelmsford  
Essex CM2 0QL  

Tel:     01245 541200  
Web:   www.voa.gov.uk  

 
 

41



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 26 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

APPENDIX D – REFERENCES TO BEST PRACTICE GUIDES 
 
 
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
Home Office 
 
Safer Clubbing Guide 
www.drugs.gov.uk 
 
The Event Safety Guide – A guide to health, safety and welfare at music and similar events 
(HSE1999)(“The Purple Book”) ISBN 0 7176 2453 6 
 
Managing Crowds Safely 
(HSE 2000) ISBN 0 7176 1834 X 
 
The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds 
(“The Green Guide”)  ISBN 0 11 300095 2 
 
Safety Guidance for Street Arts, Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances 
www.streetartsnetwork.org.uk/pages/publications.htm 
 
The National Alcohol Harm Reduction strategy Toolkit 
www.hmso.gov.uk 
 
The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks 
www.portman.group.org.uk 
  
Licensed Property:  Noise 
Drugs and Pubs 
Safety in Pubs 
Security in Design 
www.beerandpub.com 
 
Guide to fire Precautions in Existing Places of Entertainment and Like Premises (The Primrose 
Guide) 
www.hmso.gov.u 
 
Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs 
Institute of Acoustics 
 

 

 

42



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 27 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

APPENDIX E – THE APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
PERSONAL LICENCE 
 
To apply for a new Personal Licence, applicants must be over 18 years of age and 
will need to complete an application form and be made to the authority for the area in 
which the applicant is normally resident.  You should note that the forms are 
prescribed forms issued by the Government. 
 
The application must be accompanied by: 
 

• the prescribed fee,  

• two passport photos (one which must be certified as a true likeness, by a 
solicitor, notary, a person of standing in the community (this includes a bank 
or building society official, police officer, civil servant or a minister of religion) 
or any individual with a professional qualification),  

• the original of the applicant’s licensing qualification,  

• a Criminal Conviction Certificate or a Criminal Record Certificate or the results 
of a subject access search of the police national computer by the National 
intelligence Service.    

• A declaration by the applicant that either they have not been convicted of a 
relevant offence or a foreign relevant offence or that they have been convicted 
of a relevant offence or a foreign relevant offence accompanied by details of 
the nature of the conviction and any sentence imposed on them in respect of 
it.   

• The criminal checks must not be more than one month old when your 
application is received. 

 
The Licensing Authority must reject the application where the applicant is under 18 
years of age, does not possess the prescribed licensing qualification or has had a 
personal licence forfeited within the preceding 5 years.  
 
Where an applicant has been convicted of a relevant offence or foreign offence the 
Licensing Authority must give notice to that effect to the police who may object to the 
application. The police objection has to be made within 14 days of receiving the 
notice from the Licensing Authority, following which a hearing must be held to 
determine the application.  
 
For renewals, an application must be made to the local authority which issued the 
original licence. Any such application for renewal should be accompanied by: 
 

• two passport photographs (one of which must be certified as a true likeness),  

• a criminal conviction certificate or a criminal record certificate or a subject 
access search of the police national computer by the National intelligence 
Service.   

• A declaration by the applicant that either they have not been convicted of a 
relevant offence or a foreign relevant offence or that they have been 
convicted of a relevant offence or a foreign relevant offence accompanied by 

43



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 28 of 41  

details of the nature of the conviction and any sentence imposed on them in 
respect of it.   

• The criminal checks must not be more than one month old when your 
application is received. 

 
PREMISES LICENCE  
 
To apply for the grant of a Premises Licence, applicants must be over 18 years of 
age and complete an approved application form, which must be sent to the Licensing 
Authority together with: -  
 

(a) a plan of the premises drawn to the scale of 1:100,  
 
(b) a form of consent in the prescribed form given by the individual whom the 

applicant wishes to have specified in the premises licence as the premises 
supervisor, if the licensable activities to which the application relates 
include the supply of alcohol,  

 
(c) the relevant fee . Please note, the Premises Licence/Club Certificate is 

payable annually on the anniversary of the grant of the licence.  Non-
payment of this fee will be treated by the local authority as a serious 
matter and will result in the licence being suspended until payment is 
received. 

 
The plan shall show: -  
 

(a) the extent of the boundary of the building, if relevant, and any external and 
internal walls of the building and, if different, the perimeter of the premises;  

 
(b) the location of points of access to and egress from the premises;  
 
(c) if different from sub-paragraph (3)(b), the location of escape routes from 

the premises;  
 
(d) in a case where the premises is to be used for more than one licensable 

activity, the area within the premises used for each activity;  
 
(e) fixed structures (including furniture) or similar objects temporarily in a fixed 

location (but not furniture) which may impact on the ability of individuals on 
the premises to use exits or escape routes without impediment;  

 
(f) in a case where the premises includes a stage or raised area, the location 

and height of each stage or area relative to the floor;  
 
(g) in a case where the premises includes any steps, stairs, elevators or lifts, 

the location of the steps, stairs, elevators or lifts;  
 
(h) in the case where the premises includes any room or rooms containing 

public conveniences, the location of the room or rooms;  
 

44



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 29 of 41  

(i) the location and type of any fire safety and any other safety equipment 
including, if applicable, marine safety equipment; and  

 
(j) the location of a kitchen, if any, on the premises.  

 
The plan may include a legend through which the matters mentioned or referred to in 
paragraph above are sufficiently illustrated by the use of symbols on the plan.  
 
A copy of the application, plan and DPS consent form (where applicable) must be given to 
the Responsible Authorities (Appendix B) at the same time of giving the application to the 
Licensing Authority.  
 
A notice, on blue paper sized A4 or larger, must also be displayed at or on the premises to 
which the application relates for a period of not less than 28 consecutive days from the day 
following the day the application was given to the Licensing Authority, where it can be 
conveniently read from the exterior of the premises.  
 
Where the premises cover an area of more than 50 square meters, a further identical notice 
must be displayed every 50 metres along the external perimeter of the premises abutting 
any highway.  
 
The notice must state: -  
 

� details of the relevant licensable activities that it is proposed will be carried 
on or from the premises, or in the case of an application to vary the 
licence, a brief description of the proposed variation,  

 
� the name of the applicant,  

 
� the postal address of the premises, or in the case where there is no postal 

address, a description of the premises sufficient to enable the location and 
extent of the premises to be identified,  

 
� the postal address and (where applicable) the worldwide web address 

where the register of the relevant licensing authority is kept and where and 
when the record of the application may be inspected,  

 
� the date by which any persons who live or are involved in a business in the 

relevant Licensing Authority area or responsible authority may make 
representations to the relevant licensing authority and that representations 
should be made in writing,  

 
� that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in 

connection with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is 
liable on summary conviction for the offence.  

 
The notice, containing the same details, must be published in a local newspaper or similar 
document on at least one occasion during the period of 10 working days following the day 
after giving the application to the Licensing Authority. 
 
 

45



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 30 of 41  

VARIATION OF PREMISES LICENCE  
 
To apply for variation to a premises licence, the same procedure must be adopted as for the 
original application plus both parts of the original licence must be returned to the Licensing 
Authority, or the application must include an explanation why the licence has not been 
returned.  
 
An application to vary the licence may not be made to extend the period for which a licence 
has effect, e.g. a seasonal licence or one that is limited to certain days/dates. 
 
Applications to vary the licence may be made to affect the licensable activities provided, the 
times during which they may be provided or where the premises are to undergo structural 
alterations.  
 
However an application to vary a licence may not be made to vary substantially the 
premises to which it relates. As this is a matter of degree, applicants are advised to contact 
the Licensing Unit to discuss the extent of the alterations to decide if an application for a 
new licence must be made.  
 
Where the application to vary the licence arises from structural alterations, a new plan 
showing the proposed alterations must also be submitted.  
The fee for a variation is the same as for a new licence and is set in accordance with the 
Non-domestic Rateable Value of the premises.  
 
VARIATION OF PREMISES LICENCE (DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR)  
 
An application to vary a premises licence, where there has been a change of the 
designated premises supervisor, must be in the prescribed form and accompanied by  
 

� the premises licence,  
 
� a form of consent in the prescribed form given by the individual whom the 

applicant wishes to have specified in the premises licence as the premises 
supervisor,  

 
� the fee  

 
A copy of the application and all accompanying documents must also be sent to the 
police (Appendix B).  
 
TRANSFER OF PREMISES LICENCE  
 
An application to transfer a premises licence, where there has been a change of the 
premises licence holder, must be in the prescribed form and accompanied by  
 

� the premises licence,  
 
� a form of consent in the prescribed form given by the existing premises 

licence holder’ 
 
� the fee  

46



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 31 of 41  

 
A copy of the application and all accompanying documents must also be sent to the 
police (Appendix B).  
 
 
CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE  
 
The process of applying for the grant or variation of a Club Premises Certificate is 
similar to that for a Premises Licence.  
 
There are two exceptions: -  
 

� there must be a declaration for qualifying club status in respect of an 
application for grant of a new club premises certificate, and  

 
� neither a Designated Premises Supervisor nor a Personal Licence Holder 

is required because the ‘supply’ of alcohol that is managed by or on behalf 
of the club is not regarded as a ‘sale’ of alcohol.  

 
ADVERTISEMENT OF APPLICATIONS BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licence and Club Premises 
Certificate)(Amendment) Regulations 2012, which came into effect on 25th April 2012 
introduced a requirement for the licensing authority to advertise, by way of a notice 
on its website; all applications for premises licences under section 12, for provisional 
statements under section 29, variation of a premises licence under section 34 
(except where the only variation sought is the inclusion of an alternative licence 
condition), for club premises certificate under section 71 or to vary a club premises 
certificate under section 84. This notice must remain on the website for a period of 
no less than 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the day on which the 
application was given to the relevant licensing authority. 
 
PROVISIONAL STATEMENT  
 
Where premises are being, or are about to be constructed for the purpose of being used for 
one or more of those activities, or are being or about to be extended or otherwise altered for 
that purpose (whether or not they are already being used for that purpose) an application 
may be made by any person for the grant of a Provisional Statement.  
 
‘Person’ in this instance also includes a business (e.g. the applicant could be a 
firm or architects, or a construction firm or even a financier).  
 
To apply for a Provisional Statement, the same procedure must be adopted as that 
described above for the grant of a premises licence.  
 
A provisional statement does not have a limited duration. However with the 
potential for there to be a material change over time, the longer the delay 
before a premises licence is applied for the greater the potential that 
representations, at the later application, may be allowed.  
 

47



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 32 of 41  

Responsible authorities and interested parties will be able to make representations against 
the application. If there are no representations the application will be granted. If there are 
representations a hearing will be held before the Licensing Sub Committee.  
 
The Licensing Act 2003 does not empower a licensing authority to refuse a provisional 
statement. Following consideration of relevant representations the Licensing Committee 
may only indicate (as part of the issued statement) that it would consider certain steps 
to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives when, and if, an application 
was made for a premises licence or club premises certificate following the issue of the 
provisional statement.  
 
MINOR VARIATIONS TO PREMISES LICENCES AND CLUB PREMISES 
CERTIFICATES 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 has been amended by the insertion of sections 41A to 41C 
relating to minor variations. These sections were commenced on 29 July 2009.   
Small variations that will not impact adversely on the licensing objectives are subject 
to a simplified ‘minor variations’ process. Under this process, the applicant is not 
required to advertise the variation in a newspaper or circular or copy it to responsible 
authorities. 
 
However, they must display it on a white notice (to distinguish it from the blue notice 
used for full variations and new applications). The notice must be displayed for a 
period of ten working days starting on the working day after the minor variation 
application was given to the licensing authority. 
 
On receipt of an application for a minor variation, the licensing officer for the 
licensing authority will consider whether the variation could impact adversely on the 
licensing objectives.  In considering the application, the licensing authority must 
consult relevant responsible authorities if there is any doubt about the impact of the 
variation on the licensing objectives and they need specialist advice, and take their 
views into account in reaching a decision.  But there is no requirement to consult all 
responsible authorities on each application and in many cases the licensing authority 
may be able to make a decision without consultation. 
 
The licensing authority will also consider any relevant representations received from 
interested parties within the time limit referred to below. Representations are only 
relevant if they clearly relate to the likely effect of the grant of the variation on the 
promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.  
 
For minor variations, there is no right to a hearing (as for a full variation or new 
application), but the licensing authority will take any representations into account in 
arriving at a decision. Persons who live or are involved in a business in the relevant 
Licensing Authority area have ten working days from the ‘initial day’, i.e., the day 
after the application is received by the licensing authority, to submit representations.  
 
The licensing authority must therefore wait until this period has elapsed before 
determining the application, but must do so at the latest within 15 working days, 
beginning on the first working day after the authority received the application, with 
effect either that: 
 

48



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 33 of 41  

• the minor variation is granted; or, 
• the application is refused. 
 
If the licensing authority fails to respond to the applicant within 15 working days the 
application will be treated as refused and the authority must return the fee to the 
applicant forthwith. However, the licensing authority and the applicant may agree 
instead that the undetermined application should be treated as a new application and 
that the fee originally submitted will be treated as a fee for the new application. 
 
Club Premises Certificates 
 
The arrangements for applying for or seeking to vary club premises certificates are 
the same as those for a premises licence. Clubs may also use the minor variation 
process to make small changes to their certificates as long as these will have no 
adverse impact on the licensing objectives. 
 
TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES 
 
Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s) do not have to be applied for, they are issued by the 
‘Premises User’. Any person can be a ‘Premises User’ and can issue a TEN in respect of 
any premises or area of land. A ‘Premises User’ does not have to hold a Personal Licence 
to authorise the supply of alcohol in conjunction with a TEN.  
 
However, it should be noted that TENS are subject to certain limitations: -  
 

� the same premises cannot be used on more than 12 occasions in a 
calendar year, but are subject to the overall aggregate of 21 days 
irrespective of the number of occasions on which they have been used, 
and  

 
� the number of notices that may be given are limited to 50 in one year for a 

Personal Licence holder and 5 times in one year for any other person. 
 

� The maximum duration of an event is 168 hours (7 days).  
 

• the maximum number of persons (being less than 500) it is proposed will 
be allowed on the premises during those times 

 
The notice must be given to the Licensing Authority at least 10 working days before the 
event is held and must contain details of: -  
 

� the proposed licensable activities,  
 
� the period (not exceeding 168 hours) during which it is proposed to use 

the premises,  
 
� the times during that period when it is proposed for those licensable 

activities to take place, ,  
 
� where alcohol is to be supplied, whether it is for consumption on or off the 

premises, or both,  

49



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 34 of 41  

 
� the fee  

 
A copy of the notice must be also given to the police and Environmental Health at the 
same time and must be received at least 10 working days prior to the event. 
 
An Objection Notice may be issued by the police or Environmental Health where they 
are satisfied that the proposed use of the premises would undermine the crime 
prevention licensing objective. The police or Environmental Health must make their 
objection to both the Licensing Authority and applicant no later that the 3rd working day 
of receiving the TEN, giving their reasons for doing so.  
 
Where an Objection Notice is given, the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to 
consider the objection, unless the police or Environmental Health agree that it is 
unnecessary, and give a Counter Notice if it considers it necessary for the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective. Where a hearing is held, it must be at least 24hrs before 
the start of the event.  
 
Licensing Authorities will be given discretion to apply existing licence conditions to a 
TEN if there are objections from Essex Police or the Council’s Environmental Health 
Service. 
 
The Licensing Authority must issue a Counter Notice where the limits are exceeded.  
 
Late Temporary Event Notices 
 
Provision has been made to allow for ‘late TEN’ applications. The following applies:  

• A personal licence holder can submit up to 10 Late TENS in a calendar year; 
non-personal licence holder may submit a maximum of 2. 

• Late TENS are included in the maximum allowance for the premises. 

• The notice must be submitted to the Licensing Authority, Police and 
Environmental Health 5-9 days before the date of the event. 

• There needs to be exceptional circumstance why the Late TEN process is being 
used as opposed to the standard TEN. 

• The Licensing Authority will issue a counter notice prohibiting any licensable 
activity if an objection is received from either the Police or environmental health.  

 
 
IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT WITH REGARD TO THE ABOVE, PLEASE 
CONTACT THE LICENSING SECTION FOR ADVICE. 
 

50



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 35 of 41  

HARLOW COUNCIL – STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

APPENDIX F– OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS/REVIEWS AND APPEALS 
 

Who can object (make representations) about an application for a premises 
licence or ask for a review of the licence: 
 
‘Any Person’ and ‘Responsible Authorities’ may make ‘relevant representations’ in 
respect of applications made for the grant or variation of a Premises Licence or Club 
Premises Certificate and may seek a review of licences and certificates granted.  
 
‘Any Person’ is defined as:- 
 

• Any person  
 

• A body (e.g. a residents association) representing any persons 
 

• A person involved in any business.  
 

• A body (e.g. a trade association) representing any person involved in any 
businesses. 
 

• Members of the Licensing Authority. 
 

‘Responsible Authority’ is defined as any of the following: -  
 

• the Chief Officer of Police for the area in which the premises are situated 
 

• the Fire Authority for the area in which the premises are situated 
 

• the enforcing authority for Health and Safety at Work for the area in which the 
premises are situated 

 

• the local planning authority for the area in which the premises are situated 
 

• the local authority responsible for minimising or preventing the risk of pollution 
of the environment or of harm to human health  

 

• the body representing matters relating to the protection of children from harm  
 

• a navigation authority, the Environment Agency, or the British Waterways 
Board in relation to a vessel  

 

• Essex Trading Standards - weights and measures.  
 

• The Licensing Authority 
 

• Local Health Board 
 
(for a list of Responsible Authorities in Harlow District, see Appendix B) 

51



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 36 of 41  

  
What are relevant representations?  
 
‘Relevant representations’ is the term used for comments and objections that:-  
 

• are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence or premises 
certificate on the promotion of the licensing objectives,  

 

•  are made by any person or ‘Responsible Authority’ within the prescribed 
period and have not been withdrawn,  

 

• in the opinion of the Licensing Authority, are not frivolous or vexatious,  
 
What does frivolous, vexatious or repetitious mean?  
 
Frivolous or vexatious will bear their ordinary meaning. The licensing authority must 
form a view as to whether a reasonable person would consider the observations 
frivolous or vexatious.  
 
In the case of a review of a premises licence or certificate, a representation will be 
repetitious if:  
 
a) it is identical or substantially similar to:-  
 

• grounds in an earlier application for review made in respect of the same 
premises and already determined, or  

 

• representations considered by the Licensing Authority in granting the 
premises licence or certificate, or  

 

• representations which would have been considered except they were 
excluded representations following a provisional statement, and  

 
b) a reasonable interval has not elapsed since the earlier application for review or 

grant of the licence or certificate. 
 
Time Limits on Representations 
 
The table below lists those provisions about which representations may be made, 
the timescales within which and by whom they may be made.  
 

Provision under 
which hearing is 

held.  

Period of time within 
which representations 

must be made.  

Persons who may make 
representations.  

Application for 
premises licence  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person or business 

52



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 37 of 41  

Application for a 
provisional statement  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person or business 

Application to vary 
premises licence  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person or business 

Application to vary 
premises supervisor 
(DPS)  

14 days of receipt of 
application.  

Chief of Police  

Application for 
transfer of premises 
licence  

14 days of receipt of 
application.  

Chief of police  

Cancellation of 
interim authority 
notice  

48 hours of receipt of 
application.  

Chief of police  

Application for review 
of premises licence  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Application for club 
premises certificate  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Application to vary 
club premises 
certificate  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Application for review 
of club premises 
certificate  

28 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority.  

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Counter notice 
following police 
objection to 
temporary event 
notice*  

3 working days of receipt 
of application.  

Chief of police  
Environmental Health 

Application for grant 
of personal licence  

14 days of receipt of 
notice of convictions from 
Licensing Authority.  

Chief of police  

Application for 
renewal of personal 
licence  

14 days of receipt of 
notice of convictions from 
Licensing Authority.  

Chief of police  

53



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 38 of 41  

Convictions coming 
to light after 
grant/renewal of 
personal licence  

14 days of receipt of 
notice of convictions from 
Licensing Authority.  

Chief of police  

Review of premises 
licence following 
closure order  

7 days beginning on the 
day after the day the 
licensing authority 
receives notice given by 
relevant magistrates’ 
court  

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Minor Variation 10 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the day on which 
application was given to 
licensing authority. 

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

Summary Review 10 days beginning with 
the day after the day on 
which application was 
given to licensing 
authority. 

Responsible authorities  
Any person 

 
* It should be noted that the Licensing Authority must issue a counter notice where 
the Temporary Event Notice exceeds the permitted limits, which are: -  
 

• 50 per year if the premises user is the holder of a Personal Licence,  
 

• 5 per year if the premises user is not the holder of a Personal Licence, and  
 

• 12 per year in respect of the same premises covering no more than 15 
days in total.  

 
Reviews  
 
The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to review a premises licence or club 
premises certificate where either: -  
 

• representations are made in the prescribed form by a Responsible 
Authority or Interested Party seeking a review of the licence or certificate 
on one or more of the licensing objectives, or  

 

• a Magistrate’s Court issues a notice under section 165 (4) of the Act, 
following consideration of a Closure Order issued by the police.  

 
In the case of a review of a premises licence or certificate, a representation will be 
repetitious if: - 
 
(a)  it is identical or substantially similar to: -  
 

• grounds in an earlier application for review made in respect of the same 
premises and already determined, or  

54



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 39 of 41  

 

• representations considered by the Licensing Authority in granting the 
premises licence or certificate, or  

 

• representations which would have been considered except they were 
excluded representations following a provisional statement, and  

 
(b)  a reasonable interval has not elapsed since the earlier application for review 

or grant of the licence or certificate.  
 
 
Hearings  
 
A hearing must be held within a prescribed period of time where relevant 
representations are made in respect of any licensing application or issue of a 
Temporary Event Notice or in respect of an application for review of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate.  
 
Notices must be sent to each party informing them of the date of hearing: -  
 
(a)  at least 2 working days before the day of the hearing for cancellation of an 

interim authority notice and counter notice to a temporary event notice 
following police objection;  

 
(b)  at least 5 working days before the day of the hearing for review of a premises 

licence following a closure order;  
 
(c)  at least 10 working days before the day of the hearing in respect of all other 

applications.  
 
Copies of the representations must also be given to the applicant, the holder of the 
premises licence or the club, as appropriate.  
 
The table below lists the provisions, the timescales within which hearings have to be 
held and the persons to whom notices must be given. 
 

Provision under which 
hearing is held.  

Period of time in which 
hearing must be held.  

Persons to whom 
notices must be sent.  

Application for premises 
licence  

20 working days beginning 
with the day after the end of 
the period for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Application for a 
provisional statement  

20 working days beginning 
with the day after the end of 
the period for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Application to vary 
premises licence  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 

Holder of licence.  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

55



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 40 of 41  

representations.  

Application to vary 
premises licence to 
change the premises 
supervisor  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Holder of licence.  
Chief of police  
Proposed premises 
supervisor  

Application for transfer 
of premises licence  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Chief of police  
Holder of licence.  

Cancellation of interim 
authority notice  

5 working days beginning 
with the day after the end 
of the period for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Chief of police  

Application for review of 
premises licence  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Holder of premises licence.  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Application for club 
premises certificate  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant (the club).  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Application to vary club 
premises certificate  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant (the club).  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Application for review of 
club premises certificate  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
The club.  
Persons who have made 
relevant representations. 

Counter notice following 
police/environmental 
health objection to 
temporary event notice  

7 working days beginning 
with the day after the end 
of the period for making 
representations.  

The premises user.  
Chief of police  
Environmental Health 

Application for grant of 
personal licence  

20 working days 
beginning with the day 
after the end of the period 
for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Chief of police  

56



APPENDIX 2 

 

Harlow Council Licensing Policy (Final Version 2)  
Page 41 of 41  

Application for renewal 
of personal licence  

20 working days beginning 
with the day after the end 
of the period for making 
representations.  

Applicant.  
Chief of police  

Convictions coming to 
light after grant or 
renewal of personal 
licence  

20 working days beginning 
with the day after the end 
of the period for making 
representations.  

Holder of licence.  
Chief of police  

Review of premises 
licence following closure 
order  

10 working days beginning 
with the day after the day 
the licensing authority 
receives the court notice.  

Holder of licence.  
Chief of police  

 
Appeals Against Decisions  

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Licensing Committee can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court. 

57



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 3 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

TITLE: SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ACT AND 
SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

MICHAEL PITT, ENVIRONMENT AND 
LICENSING MANAGER (01279) 446114 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER: PAULINE WRIGHT, SENIOR 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 
(01279) 446148 

 
 
RECOMMENDED to Council that: 
 
A Members note the commencement of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 and 

its implementation. 
 

B Powers are delegated from the Act to permit officers to perform the 
administrative functions of the Act. 
 

C Powers are delegated from the Act to permit Licensing Sub-Committees to be 
held. 
 

D Powers are delegated from the Act to permit Officers to undertake 
enforcement of the Act. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 commences on 1October 2013. This 

replaces the current registration requirement of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 
1964, with a licensing regime.This also incorporates motor salvage operators 
into the Act. 
 
It will operate in a similar way to other licensing regimes such as the 
Licensing Act 2003.   
 
The local authority will be required to set its own fee for the licence.  
 

2. There will be two types of licence these being a site licence and a collector’s 
licence which will be administered by the local authority. Site managers will 
need to be named on site licences. Collectors will need a licence in each local 
authority area in which they collect.  

Agenda Item 9b

58



 
3. The licence application will include a requirement for the local authorities to 

consult with other organisations and the applicant will need to complete a 
Basic Disclosure to make sure that the applicant has not been convicted of a 
relevant offence; relevant offences will be prescribed in Regulations in due 
course.The local authority must be satisfied that the applicant is a suitable 
person to hold a licence before it can grant a licence. The scope of this 
requirement will include applicants, site managers, directors, secretaries and 
shadow directors of companies.  
 

4. There are enforcement requirements for local authorities which include 
powers of entry to premises, checking compliance with licence requirements 
and the power to revoke or vary a licence.The local authority, in certain 
circumstancesmay need to serve formal notices on applicants and licence 
holders. In addition, there may be occasions where it is appropriate to close 
an unlicensed site.  
 

5. Scrap metal dealers will be required to check the identification of people 
selling scrap metal to them. They must verify the person’s full name and 
address. The verification must be by reference to documents, data or other 
information obtained from a reliable source. The Government is likely to 
produce regulations about what is or isn’t acceptable in terms of identification 
documentation.  
 
It will be an offence to not make proper checks and an offence to provide 
false information. 
 

6. The Licensing Committee received a report on 10 July 2012 about the 
introduction of cashless payments. This requirement was brought about by 
the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012 S 145-147. 
These sections have now been repealed because the requirement for 
cashless payments is now contained in the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 
 

7. Record-keeping requirements will be similar to those already required by the 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964. These were detailed for the Committee in a 
report presented on 26 March 2012, but essentially dealers will need to 
record details of the description and weight of the metal, details of who they 
bought it from, details for the vehicle it was delivered in as well as details of 
how the metal was paid for. There are similar record-keeping requirements 
for the sale of metal from the site.  
 
Collectors are also required to keep records of their transactions.  
 

8. There will be a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court by applicants or 
licence holders against local authority decisions. 
 

59



9. There will be a register of licensed sites and collectors kept by the 
Environment Agency.  
 

10. There are currently 12 businesses registered with Harlow Council, consisting 
of 5 scrap metal sites, 6 collectors and one motor salvage operator. It is 
anticipated at this time that most of these will require a licence however, if 
some of these collectors do not collect in Harlow, they will not require to be 
licenced with us.  If collectors registered elsewhere collect in Harlow, they will 
need to apply for a licence here. 
 

 
ISSUES/PROPOSALS 

11. Time scales 
 
There will be little time to implement the Act within the timescales proposed by 
the Home Office. It is important that the Council is ready to process applications 
to the timescales. The window for applications from those already on the 
registration data base is 1October to 15 October.Applications received during 
this time will permit businesses to trade beyond October 1 without a licence until 
the application process is complete.  
 
Businesses will not be able to trade if applications are received by us after  
15 October. These applicants will need to suspend trading until their application 
process is complete. 
 

12. Fee setting 
 
The fee-setting process is likely to start on 1 September but will need to 
complete the relevant Committee stages before we can release the fee to 
businesses. The application form and guidance on its completion, has already 
been dispatched to the applicants so they can start other aspects of the 
application process such as obtaining their Disclosure Scotland certificates in 
readiness for sending in the full application once the fee has been formally set.  
 
Although the guidance on fee setting has yet to be published, it is likely that the 
fees will be in the region of the following: 
 
Site licence application: £375.00 
Site licence renewal: £283.00 
Site licence variation: £283.00 
 
Collectors licence application: £273.00 
Collectors licence renewal: £180.00 
Collectors licence variation: £180.00 
 

60



The fee must reflect actual costs incurred by the authority in administering 
applications and enforcing provisions of the Act. Although the licences will be 
valid for three years, the fees will need to be reviewed annually and adjusted to 
reflect actual costs.  
 

13. Determining applications and Sub-committees 
 
In most cases it is anticipated that applications will be non-contentious, in which 
case it is proposed that officers will grant the licence.Officers will need delegated 
powers in order to administer applications and grant non-contentious licences. 
 
Where the application is contentious, it is proposed that a licensing sub-
committee will need delegated powers to hold a hearing to determine an 
application.  
 
The Committee will need to decide when a sub-committee will be held. To be 
consistent with other sub-committees, it is suggested that this could be when:  
 
i. Basic Disclosure shows relevant convictions;  
ii. The consultation process has been completed, if there are any adverse 

responses which may impact on the ‘suitable person’ status of the 
applicant.  

iii. The suitable person status of a current licence holder is called into 
question; 

iv. A licence needs to be revoked. 
 

14. Enforcement of the Act will commence on 1 December. Officers will need 
delegated powers to have powers of entry onto premises to check compliance 
with The Act and to take enforcement action where necessary.  
 
 

 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

None specific to this report. 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
The new fees will generate income for the Council and costs are to be 
determined prior to the commencement of the licensing process. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  
 
Housing 

61



None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

None specific. 

Author: Lynn Seward, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
The Council must have due regard to the implementation arrangements of this 
Act to be approved by the Council which are contained within the body of the 
report. 
Author: Dimple Roopchand on behalf of Brian Keane, Interim Head of 
Governance 
 
 
Background Papers 
[These are papers referred to in the preparation of the report that are not 
attached as appendices but that are available for public or Councillor study.] 
 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
None. 
 
 

62



 

MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
16 July 2013 7.30  - 8.40 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Paul Sztumpf (Chairman) 
Councillor David Carter (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Nick Churchill 
Councillor Jacqui Cross 
Councillor Manny Doku 
Councillor Waida Forman 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop 
Councillor Patrick McCabe 

 
Officers 
Jane Greer, Regeneration and Development Manager 
Graham Pearman, Policy and Performance Team Leader 
Joel West, Governance Support Officer 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Linda Pailing. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

3. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2013 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
4. MATTERS ARISING  

 
Further to Minute 64, the Chairman advised that, so far, £16,000 has been 
secured for the Safer Harlow Partnership in 2013/14. This is the same 
level of funding as the previous year. Bids for additional funding have been 
made and the outcome of these bids is awaited. 
 
Impact of the University Technical College 
 

5. WRITTEN SUBMISSION - SCOPING REPORT  
 
The Committee received a scoping report for the review of the impact of 
the proposed Sir Charles Kao University Technical College (UTC) in 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 11

63



Harlow. Jane Greer, Regeneration Manager, introduced the report. Jane 
explained that Council Officers participate in the UTC Steering Group, and 
suggested the steering group would be willing to address the Committee if 
Councillors would consider that helpful.  
 
The Chairman asked that the review specifically address what impact the 
opening of the UTC would have on local schools and the Committee asked 
that representatives of Stewards Academy be invited as witnesses for the 
review, due to the Academy’s science speciality  
 
The Committee also asked that existing students and/or youth 
representatives be invited to contribute to the review.  
 

RESOLVED that the Committee agrees the scope for the Review of 
the Proposed Sir Charles Kao University Technical College as set out 
in the report provided, with the addition of representatives from 
Stewards Academy and student/youth representatives to the list of 
potential witnesses. 

 
Key findings from the latest Census data 
 

6. WRITTEN SUBMISSION - ANALYSIS OF LATEST CENSUS DATA  
 
The Committee received a report analysing the results of the 2011 
National Census as they apply to Harlow. Graham Pearman, Policy and 
Performance Team Leader, introduced the report. Graham identified 
factors that may help to explain some of the statistical findings about 
Harlow and explained that, due to the relatively high response rate in 
Harlow of 96%, the Council can have confidence in the data. 
 
The Committee noted that the Census data suggested a marked change 
to the national identities of Harlow residents between 2001 and 2011 and 
agreed to explore the degree to which integration of non-British nationals 
was successful in Harlow.  
 
The Committee noted the Census data suggested Harlow residents have 
fewer qualifications and skills than the national average. The Chairman 
enquired whether future releases of the Census data would enable the 
Committee to identify  relationships between demographic/ethnic/national 
groups and skill/qualification achievement, and suggested the Committee 
may wish to explore this matter in 2013/14. 
 

RESOLVED that the report is noted.  
 

7. WORK PLAN  
 
The Committee received a report which proposed a work plan for 2013/14. 
An additional note was also circulated (attached), which detailed the 
Chairman’s suggestions for allocation of specific work plan items to 

64



meetings of the Committee in 2013/14. Several amendments to the 
Chairman’s suggested work plan were agreed: 
 
Item 1 – Review of the Impact of the UTC – the Committee agreed that a 
working party be set-up to consider this matter. The following members of 
the Committee expressed an interest in participating: Councillors Paul 
Sztumpf, Maggie Hulcoop, Patrick McCabe and Waida Forman. 
 
Item 6 – Affordable Social Housing and RSLs – The Committee agreed 
that the report for this item be moved from January 2014 to March 2014, to 
avoid potential delays caused by the Christmas period. 
 
Item 9 – Provision of English as second language courses in Harlow – the 
Committee agreed that (i) this work plan item be broadened to ‘Integration 
of non-British national residents in Harlow’ and (ii) this item be primarily 
Councillor-led, with members of the Committee choosing their own fact-
finding methods and reporting their findings to the Chairman via email in 
the first instance.  
 

RESOLVED that the Committee: 
 
A Approves the Chairman’s proposed 2013/14 work plan as set out 

in the separately circulated note (attached), subject to the 
changes noted above.  

 
B Delegates authority to finalise details of the work plan, including 

any necessary changes, to the Chief Operating Officer in 
consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 
Committee. 

 
8. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

9. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

65



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 1

6
 J

U
L
Y
 2

0
1
3
 –

 I
T
E

M
 7

, 
W

O
R

K
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 –

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L
L
Y
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

T
E

D
 

N
O

T
E

 
  R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
: 

 A
 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
s
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
. 
 

 B
 

D
e
le

g
a
te

s
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 V

ic
e
 C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

  #
 

It
e
m

 
S

c
o
p
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
N

o
te

s
 

1
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
C

o
ll
e
g
e
  

 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 P

a
rt

y
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 

e
x
p
lo

re
 t
h
is

 m
a
tt
e
r 

in
 d

e
ta

il.
  

2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

W
e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

(a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
) 

S
e
p
t/
O

c
t 
2
0
1
3
 

 

3
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

a
fe

r 
H

a
rl

o
w

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
 

N
/A

 
  

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

4
 

D
ru

g
 u

s
e
 i
n
 H

a
rl

o
w

 
  

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 

5
 

T
h
e
 I
n
te

r-
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 W

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 

6
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
S

L
s
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 

Minute Item 7

466



#
 

It
e
m

 
S

c
o
p
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
N

o
te

s
 

7
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

H
a
rl

o
w

  
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

 

8
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
n
 

A
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 S

ig
n
a
g
e
 

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 

9
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
E

n
g
li
s
h
 a

s
 a

 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 

H
a
rl

o
w

 
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

   

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

  

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
’s

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 -

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

le
d
 

fa
c
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
. 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
ile

d
 f
ro

m
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 

1
0
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
H

a
rl

o
w

 
C

o
u
n
c
il
 

 

N
/A

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
’s

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

ft
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

   
 

S
c
o
p
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1

6
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

 
1
 

 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1

7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 
4
,8

,9
 

(2
),

3
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 2

2
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 
7
 

(2
),

4
,8

 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 3

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 
5
,6

 
7
,9

 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 2

1
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 
 

1
,5

,6
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 4

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

 
 

1
0
 

 

567



 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
HELD ON 

 
18 July 2013 7.30  - 8.15 pm 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Leader and Governance Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Jean Clark, Community & Inclusion Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Tony Durcan, Resources & Enterprise Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Paul Schroder, Regeneration Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Emma Toal, Youth & Citizenship Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Phil Waite, Environment Portfolio Holder 
 
Additional Attendees 
Councillor Christine O'Dell 
Councillor Dennis Palmer 

 
Apologies Officers 
Councillor Rod Truan 
Councillor Daniella Pritchard 
 

Malcolm Morley, Chief Executive 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
Brian Keane, Interim Head of 
Governance 
Graham Pearman, Policy and 
Performance Team Leader 
Joel West, Governance Support 
Officer 

 
Other Councillors  
Councillor Andrew Johnson 
Councillor Eddie Johnson 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Tony Hall 
Councillor Sue Livings 
Councillor Russell Perrin 
Councillor David Carter 
Councillor Mike Danvers 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 
19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Rod Truan (Deputy Leader) and 
Daniella Pritchard. 
 

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 

68



21. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2013 
be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader.  

 
22. MATTERS ARISING  

 
The Leader of the Council asked that a note which had been provided to 
the Leader of the Opposition by the Head of Regeneration on estimated 
timescales for regeneration of Katherines and Slacksbury Hatches, be 
circulated to all members of the Cabinet for their information. 
 

23. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
None. 
 

24. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
None. 
 

25. PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 

26. CABINET WORK PLAN  
 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet work plan 2013/14 is noted. 
 

27. FORWARD PLAN  
 

RESOLVED that the Forward Plan, June 2013, is noted. 
 

28. RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S)  
 
None.  
 

29. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING 
GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS 
 

a) Referral from Audit and Standards Committee, 26 June 2013 - Risk 
Management Strategy and Toolkit 2013/14 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Audit and Standards Committee 
which recommended that the Cabinet adopt the Risk Management 
Strategy and Toolkit 2013/14. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Phil Waite) 
Cabinet: 

 

69



RESOLVED that the Cabinet approves the Risk Management 
Strategy and Toolkit, subject to the insertion of “the financial costs of 
mitigation and/or controls should be quantified” at the end of the first 
sentence in paragraph 4.4.1 (Entitled Stage 4: Risk Control). 

 
b) Referral from Audit and Standards Committee, 26 June 2013 - Annual 

Governance Statement 2012/13 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Audit and Standards Committee 
which recommended that the Cabinet approve the Annual Governance 
Statement 2012/13. 
 
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Resources and Enterprise, 
advised that the Council’s appointed external auditors had yet to complete 
their audit of the 2012/13 Annual Governance Statement, and explained 
that there may be minor amendments required to the Statement following 
this exercise. Councillor Durcan reassured attendees that if any major 
changes are recommended by the external auditors, the Statement will be 
brought back to the Cabinet for formal approval.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Phil Waite) 
Cabinet: 

 
RESOLVED that  

 
A The Annual Governance Statement for 2012/13 is approved. 
 
B The Cabinet delegates authority to the Head of Finance in 
consultation with the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council, 
to make any minor amendments to the Annual Governance 
Statement should that be required following completion of the 
audit of the Statement by the Council’s appointed external 
auditors. 

 
c) Referral from Licensing Committee, 9 July 2013 - Private Hire Operator 

Licence Conditions 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Licensing Committee which 
recommended that a minor change to the Licensing Conditions for Private 
Hire Operators be approved. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Emma Toal (seconded by Councillor Jean Clark) 
Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that the proposed revision to Council Procedures and 
Conditions for Private Hire Driver, Vehicle and Operator licensing, as 
detailed in paragraph 6 of the report submitted to the Licensing 
Committee, is adopted. 

 
 

70



30. YEAR END 2012/13 JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Cabinet received a report which summarised the Council’s financial 
and operational performance as at year-end 2012/13. 
 
The Leader of the Council advised of a minor clarification to page 55 of the 
report submitted: the first sentence of the ‘Finance’ text box should 
indicate that the overall underspend of £77,000 equates to a -0.1% 
variation of controllable budget, not -0.58%.   
 
Proposed by Councillor Mark Wilkinson (seconded by Councillor Jean 
Clark) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

A That Cabinet acknowledges the outturn position for 2012/13 as 
detailed in the report submitted and recognises the excellent 
control this demonstrates over the Council’s controllable elements 
of the General Fund budget. 

 
B That the schedule of Corporate Management Team (CMT) 
recommended budget carry-forward requests, totalling £159,000 
(as set out in Appendix Two to the report submitted), be 
approved. 

 
C That the contributions to reserves as set out in the report 
submitted be approved. 

 
31. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT YEAR END OUTTURN 2012/13  

 
The Cabinet received a report which summarised the year-end 2012/13 
position of the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Wilkinson) Cabinet: 

 
RESOLVED that: 

 
A The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn position for 
2012/13, as indicated in the report submitted, is noted together 
with the updated HRA working balance, and Major Repairs 
Reserve (MRR). 

 
B The Housing Revenue Account working balance and the Major 
Repairs Reserve Balance at 31 March 2013 of £2,968,000cr and 
£4,424,000cr be noted. 

 
C The forecasted operational underspend of £1,511,000 as detailed 
in Appendix A to the report submitted and other variances be 
noted. 

71



 
32. CAPITAL PROGRAMME YEAR END OUTTURN 2012/13  

 
The Cabinet received a report which summarised the year-end 2012/13 
position of the Capital Programme. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Jean Clark): 

 

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 

A Notes the outturn of the Council’s Housing and Non Housing 
Capital Programmes as at 31 March 2013 detailed as follows: 

(i) Housing Capital Programme expenditure of 
£12,413,000 against an approved revised budget of 
£15,060,000; 

(ii) Non Housing Capital Programme expenditure of 
£1,282,000 against an approved revised budget of 
£3,054,000. 

 
B Approves the carryover of Housing Capital programme schemes 

to 2013/14, of £2,593,000 to meet capital commitments. 
 

C Approves the carryover of Non Housing Capital Programme 
schemes to 2013/14 of £991,000 to meet capital commitments. 

 
33. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK  

 
The Cabinet received a report proposing a new Performance Management 
Framework to identify, monitor and assess performance issues. 
 
The Council’s Interim Head of Governance noted that, as the People 
Resource Plan had been delayed pending the appointment to the Human 
Resources Manager post, it would be appropriate to make a minor 
amendment to the wording of the Performance Management Framework 
to reflect this.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Mark Wilkinson (seconded by Councillor Emma 
Toal): 

 

RESOLVED that Cabinet approves the Performance Management 
Framework as the Council’s policy statement on how it manages 
performance, subject to rewording the first sentence in the ‘Who 
delivers?’ text box on page 107 of the report submitted with “We will 
make use of our People Resource Plan@”. 

 
34. DEBT WRITE OFFS  

 
The Cabinet received a report which detailed a number of debts which 
were deemed to be irrecoverable and therefore proposed for write-off. 
 

72



Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Paul 
Schroder) Cabinet: 

 

RESOLVED that: 
 

A Irrecoverable Council Tax amounting to £48,289.82, as detailed in 
the report submitted, be written off. 

 
B Irrecoverable housing benefit overpayments amounting to 

£10,867.44, as detailed in the report submitted, be written off. 
 

C Irrecoverable sundry debts amounting to £23,401.74, as detailed 
in the report submitted, be written off. 

 
35. MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted. 

 
a) Housing Standards Board - 11 June 2013 

 
b) Resources, Housing and Governance Overview Working Group - 2 July 

2013 
 

36. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 

 

73



 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
14 August 2013 7.30pm  - 8.25 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Edna Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jean Clark 
Councillor Michael Garnett 
Councillor Tony Hall 
Councillor Muriel Jolles 
Councillor Sue Livings 
Councillor Christine O'Dell 
Councillor Dennis Palmer 
 

 
Officers 
Sarah Bradford, Legal Services Officer 
Elizabeth Fitzgerald, Development Manager 
Katie Towner, Planning Officer 
Jo Maskell, Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
APOLOGIES 
 

 

Councillor Phil Waite 
 
 
 
23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor Jean Clark declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9  
(98 Herons Wood) as a Little Parndon & Hare Street Ward Councillor. 
 
 

24. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2013 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 

25. MATTERS ARISING  
 
None. 
 
 

74



26. WRITTEN QUESTIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

27. PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 

RESOLVED that the procedure for consideration of planning 
applications is noted.  

 
 

28. HW/PL/13/00207 PROPOSED ALDI STORE, FIRST AVENUE  
 
The Committee received a report on the planning application for the 
erection of a foodstore together with shared shoppers car park, improved 
pedestrian linkage to the Stow Neighbourhood Centre and associated 
landscaping. 
 
Presentations in favour of the application were received from the applicant, 
two supporters of the application and Councillors Mike Danvers and Paul 
Sztumpf.  
 

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to an 
appropriately worded S106 Legal Agreement and the conditions 
and informative clauses detailed in the report. 

 
 

29. HW/PL/13/00244  WHITE HOUSE, LINFORD END  
 
The Committee received a report on the planning application for the 
development of two blocks containing ten flats (ground floor one story flats 
and first floor maisonette flats with rooms in roof).  Parking court to the 
front and rear with communal gardens. 
 
It was noted that there was extant outline planning permission for the 
construction of ten flats. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions and informative clauses detailed in the report, plus: 
 
11. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for 

the provision of wildlife boxes on trees within the site and/or 
on the buildings hereby permitted (including bat bricks if 
possible), shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The details as agreed shall be 
those implemented on site and thereafter retained and 
maintained in the approved form. 

 

75



REASON: In the interests of the ecology within and 
surrounding the site, given the proximity to Harlow 
Woods. 

 
 

30. HW/PL/13/00246 98 HERONS WOOD  
 
The Committee received a report on the planning application for a two 
storey side and rear extension and single storey front extension. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions and informative clauses as detailed in the report. 

 
 

31. APPEAL SUMMARIES  
 
The Committee received a report on the result of two appeals for 
applications which had been determined under delegated powers. 
 
The appeal for 53 Whieldon Grange was allowed and in the case of an 
appeal for the variation of conditions for Yates, East Gate, the Inspector 
gave a split decision. 
 
 RESOLVED that the appeal summaries are noted. 
 
 

32. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
None. 
 
 

33. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	9a Licensing Committee 3 September 2013 - Licensing Act Policy
	Appendix 1 Essex Police Response
	Appendix 2 Final Policy

	9b Licensing Committee 3 September 2013 - Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 Implementation of the Act and Scheme of Delegation
	11 Minutes of Cabinet and Committee Meetings
	180713
	dm140813


